
 

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

     

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
  

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, November 8, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 October 25, 2016 Budget Workshops 

 October 26, 2016 Budget Workshops 

 November 1, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

       

Animal Control 

a. Contract w/Vista Veterinary Hospital for Spay & Neutering Services  

b. Contract w/Vista Veterinary Hospital for Veterinarian Medical Services  

c. Contract w/S Morris Co. for Pet Cremation Services  

Commissioners 

d. Contract w/Municipal Research & Services Center for Small Works/Vendor Roster Services  

e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No 0000-101, Dept. 115 

Human Services  

f. Amended Agreement #2 w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Operating 

Housing & Essential Needs Program  

Information Technology 

g. Purchase of Cisco Web Security Appliances, Firepower Licenses & Subscription from 

Cerium Networks  

h. Purchase of Laptop from PCS Mobile for Sheriff’s Mobile Command Center   

Juvenile 

i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 

Parks 

j. Contract w/Nelson Drilling for Well Drilling @ Rattlesnake Mountain Shooting Facility 

Personnel 

k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000 

l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 127 

m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 114 

n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 105 

o. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000 

Public Safety 

p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 171  

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area.



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

November 8, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

q. Contract w/Kiona-Benton City School District for Crime Prevention Program 

Sheriff 

r. Agreement w/Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Co. for Paper & Glove Supplies 

s. Agreement w/Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Co. for Chemicals & Janitorial Supplies 

t. Agreement w/Bob Barker Co for Inmate Supplies 

u. Agreement w/Galls, LLC for Employee Uniforms – Class A  

v. Contract w/911 Supply for Uniforms  

 

Scheduled Business  

 

Approval of 2017 Legislative Agenda ~ S Faulconer   

 

Information Technology Update ~ T Holmes 

 

2017 – 2018 Budget Discussions ~ D Sparks 

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
   

   Executive Session 

 

   Pending Litigation ~ R Brown 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



1 

 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Special Board Meeting – Budget Workshop 

Tuesday, October 25, 2016, 10:00 a.m.  

Commissioners’ Conference Room 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver  

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Sustainable Development Manager Adam Fyall; Auditor 

Brenda Chilton; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; IT Manager Teri 

Holmes; Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office; Assessor Bill Spencer and Mary Christen; Financial 

Analyst Paul Schut, Aileen Coverdell and Rosie Sparks, Auditor’s Office.  Marianne Ophardt and 

Gwen-Alyn Hoheisel, WSU Benton County Extension; DPA Ryan Brown; Sheriff Steve Keane; 

Undersheriff Jerry Hatcher.      

 

Revenue & Expenditures 
 

Mr. Sparks updated the Board on the proposed 2017-2018 budget and provided a copy of the 

preliminary Revenue and Expenditures Summary Sheet dated October 25, 2016.  He said the major 

changes were a correction to District Court (double expenditure), adjustments for real and personal 

property, could still add $600,000 if the Board decided to take the 1% and keep the levy rate the 

same, retail sales, intergovernmental revenues, decrease in other (tried to equal weight between 

juvenile and jail for expenses) and it had a corresponding decrease in non-departmental expenses;  

workman’s compensation expenditure (asked them to recoup their losses over a longer period); 

redistribution of IT costs; and increase to Elections funding (not as much in reserve).  With the 

changes, they currently had a $2.8 million deficit without requests.   

 

Commissioner Beaver commented that he and Mike Shuttleworth met with the Richland and 

Kennewick school districts and they were looking at land outside the city limits, which might have 

an impact on the budget.   

 

Assessor 

 

Bill Spencer presented the Assessor’s budget.  He said he moved things around where he saw the 

need and his office was working on efficiencies.  He said they went from 14 cars down to 6 and 

used the pool vehicles but still travelled 14,000 miles more and were getting through the evaluation 

process quicker.  He said when the new software was implemented, it would be a huge savings in 

Draft 



2 

 

IT and they would be truly mobile and almost paperless.  He mentioned they had a lot of turnover 

and so a lot of training was required.  His requests included increases in training and travel, 

especially for the new appraisers, fuel costs as they were doing more evaluations in the rural areas, 

and minor equipment and small tools to replace old and dilapidated equipment.   

 

Mr. Sparks asked about the request for IT costs.  Mr. Spencer said they needed more I-pads for the 

mobile program for more appraisers and that it was pretty important to the process and would be 

integrated into the new system.  He said the $20,000 request for development costs he was hoping 

for but understood if they couldn’t approve it.  He added they were working really hard to pick up 

new construction and said the Board of Equalization process had gone down as they were really 

trying to work with taxpayers and educating them on what they were doing.   

 

Auditor 

 

Brenda Chilton said she did not have any requests to her budget and she presented the Auditor’s 

2017-2018 strategic plan and discussed accomplishments from last budget including: 

 

 4% increase of registered voters; use of outside agency for ballot assembly; expect a 2-4% 

increase in registered voters 

 2nd piece of e-recording and electronic document recording in place  

 Financial Services Dept. – implementing electronic time sheeting; vouchers, p-cards and 

payroll; electronic pay stubs  

 Elections – drive up drop box at the Kennewick Annex; 

 Purchased equipment and software to duplicate ballots submitted electronically; on-line 

chat to streamline questions by voters 

 Vehicle Licensing in Richland – opened an additional sub-agency in the City of Richland  

 

Ms. Chilton said she was requesting software and support in the amount of $340,000 for a new 

ballot tabulation system.  The current one was 12-13 years old, all systems had to be certified and 

their system had timed out.  She said the vendor would not seek certification in the next 2-3 

versions of windows and it would need to be replaced.   

 

WSU/Benton County Extension 

 

Marianne Ophardt and Gwen-Alyn Hoheisel presented the WSU/Benton County Extension 

budget.  Ms. Ophardt said the only increase was $14,156.00 to contract services for the contract 

with WSU.   Ms. Hoheisel discussed grants that were not reflected from donations for programs.   

 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned at 10:47 a.m. 

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 

 

 



1 
 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Special Board Meeting – Budget Workshop 

Wednesday, October 26, 2016, 9:00 a.m.  

Commissioners’ Conference Room 

Benton County Justice Center, Kennewick, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver  

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy Administrator 

Loretta Smith Kelty; Sustainable Development Manager Adam Fyall; Coroner John Hansens; 

Clerk Josie Delvin; Deputy Clerk Elaine Osborne; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; IT 

Manager Teri Holmes; Erhiza Rivera, Treasurer’s Office; Treasurer Duane Davidson; Financial 

Analyst Paul Schut, Rosie Sparks, Auditor’s Office; DPA Ryan Brown; Sheriff Steve Keane; 

Undersheriff Jerry Hatcher; Linda Ivey, Sheriff’s Office; Judge Katy Butler; Superior Court Judge 

Alex Ekstrom; Superior Court Administrator Pat Austin; Van Petty, Auditor’s Office; Darryl 

Banks and Jennifer Bowe, Juvenile Dept.   

 

Coroner  

 

John Hansens presented the Coroner’s budget and said he had a decrease in temporary help but 

was asking for an increase in two part time line items; it would bring up their salary but they were 

working the same or slightly more hours.  He said after talking with Personnel and the County 

Administrator they decided to increase the salary as an alternative to paying for insurance. 

 

Treasurer 

 

Duane Davidson and Erhiza Rivera presented the Treasurer’s budget and requests included:  move 

another .5 FTE to the Treasurer’s Investment Pool and another back into Current Expense (net 

effect was zero for Current Expense). Mr. Davidson said the foreclosure program had been very 

successful and the workload had increased.  He added that the Legislature was proposing to reduce 

penalties and fees for foreclosure, which would be a huge impact to revenue to the County.  

Additional requests included $4,800 for tax statement services - with new software they anticipated 

they would need to create a new design and shift mailing the reminder coupon from in-house to 

current vendor; travel and training increase for certification and to have the tax collector manager 

continue learning best practices; association due increase; interfund increase in the amount of 

$285,000 for conversion to the new IT program for maintenance and reconciliation process; and 

$11,000 for hardware and software for extension of what they do now for sales tax monitoring.   

 

Draft 



2 
 

Clerk 

 

Josie Delvin and Elaine Osborne presented the Clerk’s budget.  Ms. Delvin said in Current Expense 

the only additional funding request was $4,500 for a vehicle (it was costing more to keep repairing 

it) and she did a lot of shifting from line items to balance with one of her big items being postage.   

 

She said her Collections Dept. was self-funded and had an increase to the percentage for archive 

specialist (previously assisted from Auditor O & M) and office supplies and postage.  Ms. Delvin 

stated she was closely monitoring the Courthouse Facilitator fund to make sure they were not over 

spending.   

 

Highlights:  

 Scan team – documents were all scanned except documents they were re-scanning from an 

agency that did a poor job (almost complete); they will then work with District Court and 

PA’s office; also scanned OPD documents. 

 Added Liberty to the public access documents and will also have one for attorneys as well; 

 Enhancement to the jury program – will be able to fill out jury summons on line 

 

Information: 

 Caseloads and hearings - over a period of 5 years cases had decreased about 100 cases/year 

and hearings slightly 

 Fines, fees and interest being waived and decrease in collections due to LFO lawsuit and 

NW Justice being active in motions to remit  

o 2015 – $708,000 waived in fines, fees and interest  

o 2016 - $1.3 million waived in fines, fees and interest (9 month) – she estimated they 

would waive over $2 million for 2016 

 Crime Victim Fund is down $24,000; and law library and judicial stabilization account are 

all down 

 Collection Fund – pays for 6 employees and benefits plus 10% admin fee paid to Current 

Expense  - $145,000; interest collected was to fund judicial officers, attorney, and part time 

PA for LFO docket  

 LFO decrease will affect Current Expense, Crime Victim Fund, and Collection Fund 

 

District Court/Probation 

 

Jacki Lahtinen and Judge Butler presented the District Court and Probation budgets.  Ms. Lahtinen 

said there were a lot of changes:  they quashed 5,000 warrants and were getting ready to send to 

collection; revenue (17%) and caseloads were currently down, but they anticipated it would go 

back up as the cities hired their officers with the 3/10 sales tax, but they were also reviewing their 

process and procedures to make changes.  Requests included pro tem money and professional 

services to increase the court interpreters up to the standard hourly rate the state recommended 

from $45/hour to $55; it could possibly come from the 3/10 sales tax.  There was a reduction of 

$10,000 in publications because they would no longer be receiving hardbound copies.  They did 

not have any increases in Probation; they had a reduction of revenue and had not filled three part-

time and one full-time position.   



3 
 

Mr. Sparks said he didn’t ever remember cutting a deputy in his career and if filings were still 

going down, would hiring more officers actually increase filings.  Commissioner Delvin said he 

thought they should look at this over the next two years and wanted to know if they could delay 

filling a district court judge position right way, depending on the trend.   

 

Judge Butler said the number of judicial officers was determined by the case only, not by the 

number of hours spent.  Chairman Small said they were just looking at options since they still had 

a $2.5 million deficit. 

 

Ms. Lahtinen said they were also looking at options and were not hiring through attrition and 

making other adjustments and were currently down three positions.  Commissioner Beaver 

commented that he didn’t think the impacts of the 3/10 had hit yet and the cities were looking at 

alternatives to incarceration.   

 

Juvenile 

 

Darryl Banks, Judge Ekstrom, and Jennifer Bowe presented the Juvenile budget.  Mr. Banks said 

that in general they were asking for baseline budget.   

 

Dept. 175 – asking to eliminate Dept. 175 (it had a singular goal as kitchen equipment replacement) 

and roll it into Dept. 172 Facilities Dept.).  Additionally, they were asking to go back to 

$12,000/year ($24,000 fenced) and start to replace some of the smaller equipment.   

 

Dept. 171 – Ms. Bowe outlined some errors in the budget:  a detention officer position that was 

currently filled was missing and other line items that had minor errors.   

 

Dept. 173 – A line item with a currently funded position was missing and another that was 

eliminated; all interfund line items were missing. 

 

There was a discussion regarding the percentage split between Benton and Franklin Counties and 

the proposed admin fee.  Ms. Smith Kelty said a proposal had been drafted and sent to Franklin 

County, however, they had an issue with some of the language so she was working with Ryan 

Brown.  Mr. Brown said the issue was not the admin fee but how they split up the pie and he 

thought they were getting close to getting it worked out.   

 

Mr. Banks discussed some low cost and no cost programs:  expanded new software for teacher 

assistance to help juveniles get their GED; collaborating with Worksource on a work readiness 

program; extended work crew to after school program; strengthened mental health program; family 

violence – training to have some employees become experts in that area; working with United Way 

on truancy issues. 

 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:41 a.m.  

 

 

 

 



4 
 

Superior Court 

 

Judge Ekstrom and Pat Austin presented the Superior Court budget.  Requests included a ½ time 

FTE guardianship case manager; increase to professional services for mandated interpreters, 

guardian ad litems, visiting judges, etc; increase for association dues for judicial officers and court 

reporters; and new line items in current expense for Franklin County’s portion of items that were 

in public safety tax (there would be a corresponding reimbursement); she only wanted those 

directly out of the 3/10 to be Benton County’s expenses.   

 

Ms. Austin said the Court was requesting bi-county non-bargaining court employees receive a 

COLA and benefit increases comparable to Benton County non-bargaining employees.   

 

Trial Court Improvement Fund – requested increase in professional services; improvements 

include the new reader boards and electronic warrant system.  

 

Sheriff  

 

Sheriff Keane, Undersheriff Hatcher and Linda Ivey presented the Sheriff’s budgets. Sheriff Keane 

discussed the following highlighted requests: 

 

Dept. 118 – Sheriff Administration - $45,000 request for computer software updates and renewals 

to transfer documents to the cloud. 

 

Dept. 119 – Sheriff Clerk & Records - $5,000 in supplies for concealed pistol licensing increase – 

anticipate $11,000 increase in revenue to offset the cost; $6,950 for minor tools for a new date 

time stamper and table and chairs; increase in bi-pin fees.   

 

Dept. 120 – Sheriff Custody - Inmate medical services for $217,000 (built-in inflator); contract 

with medical services - $114,000 for additional intake registered nurse; inmate medical 

professional – $33,000 for prescriptions, ambulance, ER; custody of prisoners - $6500 for tables 

and chairs in training room; Corrections, $7,500 due to increase in union activity grievances; 

$12,000 for Universal Security for contract increase (jail lobby); $17,500 for training and travel; 

$8,000 for repair and maintenance to vehicles to de-install and install certain equipment on new 

vehicles; jail food services in the amount of $68,000; $75,249 for jail on wheels and work crew 

vehicle for Dept. of Ecology. 

 

Dept. 121- Sheriff Patrol – $41,000 overtime for the gang team; $42,000 in overtime – grant related 

and completely reimbursed; Supplies/computer software, $4,900; increase for vet costs for k-9 and 

psychological exams for positions; $10,000 in postage (mailing to labs due to change in marijuana 

laws); $22,000 for training/travel; $8,750 for repair/maintenance for vehicle costs not done by 

county shop; IT, $9,600 for patrol units with cell phones; capital request for $330,000 to replace 

portable radios (8 years old and no longer under warranty); $18,000 for purchase of two k-9’s.    

 

Dept. 125 – Sheriff Traffic Control - $91,000 for replacement of two vehicles and $76,000 for two 

work crew vans.   

 



5 
 

Commissioner Delvin asked how many unfilled positions there were in the Sheriff’s budget.  

Undersheriff Hatcher said at least 12 unfilled positions (Dept. 120 – two that were open and six 

booking clerks; and three in Dept. 121 would likely be promoted to detective in public safety).   

 

Hanford – DOE Contract – lost one employee but had not heard there would be any cuts. 

 

Boat Patrol – received match funds of about $60,000. 

 

Work Crew – went down from six to five but no other changes. 

 

Prosecuting Attorney  

 

Andy Miller and Margaret Ault via/videoconference presented the Prosecuting Attorney’s budget.   

 

Mr. Miller said his budget was very frugal.  He said he had one opening in Child Support and the 

numbers were lower and they did not fill a position; only one county (Benton) was within the 

caseload and the other counties had too many staff and could eliminate positions.   

 

He said he they still prosecuted for the Sheriff and WA State Patrol so didn’t believe their District 

Court numbers had went down.  He said it was his impression the Sheriff’s office had not changed 

their charging policy. 

 

Victim Witness Budget – he said he was watching it very closely as it was only funded by fees and 

that was going down but they were expecting about $47,000+ extra from the State.  He discussed 

an employee that assisted with the Spanish speaking interviews and was involved in the forensics 

interview testimony and believed it was now time to ask for reimbursement for her time.  He said 

there was a possibility of getting a grant and he wanted to do that before asking for reimbursement; 

it was his recommendation to not change the budget yet but if it got worse he would have to lay 

someone off.   

 

Mr. Sparks said with the current revenue and expenditures they now had a $2.8 million deficit (just 

base line budget, not requests).  He said if they added in the requests, it would be a $5 million 

deficit.   

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 11:50 

a.m.   

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

  



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, November 1, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; DPA Ryan Brown; Clerk 

Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; Assessor Bill Spencer; Treasurer Duane 

Davidson; Superior Court Administrator Pat Austin; Superior Court Judge Robert Swisher, 

Juvenile Administrator Darryl Banks; Jennifer Bowe, Juvenile; Clark Posey, Planning;  Vic 

Reeves, Noxious Weed; Facilities Manager Dan Waggoner; Linda Ivey, Sheriff’s Office; Shyanne 

Faulconer, Community Programs/PR Coordinator; IT Manager Teri Holmes;  Kyle Sullivan, 

Human Services Manager; Financial Analyst Paul Schut; Public Services Administrator Fred 

Bowen; Aileen Coverdell, Auditor’s Office.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of October 25, 2016 were approved.   

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “m”.    

Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Clerk 

a. Agreement w/M Dolven for Family Law Facilitator Services   

Commissioners 

b. Reappointment of S LePage to Mid-Columbia Libraries Board of Trustees  

District Court 

c. Contract w/Washington Collectors for Collection Services  

Facilities 

d. Payment Authorization to Kone, Inc for Elevator Services  

e. Contract w/Fire Systems West, Inc. for Fire Alarm Maintenance & Testing  

Information Technology 

f. Purchase of Additional Workstations & Monitors from Dell Premier for Public Works  



 - 2 - 

Parks 

g. Public Access Easement Near Candy Mountain  

Personnel 

h. Salary Request Statement  

Public Works 

i. Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District for Purchase of Raw Material from Owens 

Quarry   

j. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500   

Sheriff 

k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  

Superior Court 

l. Agreement w/A Armijo for Interpreting Services 

m. Proclamation for National Adoption Day 

 

Public Hearing – Capital Improvement Plan 

 

Paul Schut presented the 2017-2022 Capital Improvement Plan for public hearing.  He commented 

that the Rural Capital Fund (two road projects) and REET Fund (Fairgrounds Buildings 2 and 3) 

sections were added so they could go into the Comprehensive Plan for funding. Mr. Schut reviewed 

the requests and said there were $20 million worth of projects in the plan; not approved to get done 

but determined as needed.   

 

As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve and adopt the 2017-2022 Benton County 

Capital Improvement Plan as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the 

motion carried.  

 

Tenant Improvements Project – Justice Center 

 

Dan Waggoner said the construction plans for the remodel of six areas located at the Justice Center 

were complete and ready to go to bid and he was seeking permission to continue that process. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve the Public Services Administrator to proceed 

with the bidding process for the Justice Center Remodel Project.  Commissioner Delvin seconded 

and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Change Order #1 with MG Wagner – Roof Replacement Project 

 

Dan Waggoner presented Change Order No. 1 for the roof replacement project as follows: 

 

 $19,202 credit – modify the underlayment materials on the roof of the original Courts and 

Jail buildings 

 $65,860 charge - Option of changing from a standard solvent based adhesive to a solvent-

free adhesive.  The purpose of this would be to reduce the odor and minimize the smell of 

glue inside the building, which would be a better option for employees and guests.   



 - 3 - 

 

Chairman Small said he was disappointed it wasn’t included in the beginning from the Contractor.  

There was a discussion regarding the estimate and final bid amount. Mr. Waggoner said the 

original construction estimate was $4 million and the bid came in a $1.9 million.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to approve Change Order No. 1 and authorize the 

Chairman to sign.  Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried. 

 

Preliminary Plat – SUB – 2016-005 

 

Clark Posey presented the proposed preliminary plat of La Buena Vida Estates.  He said the 

Planning Commission completed the open record hearing and recommended approval with 

conditions.  He commented that one of the issues that had come up lately was water supply but 

this plat would be served by Oasis Water Corporation for water and by individual septic systems. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to adopt the Planning Commission’s recommendation, 

Findings and Conclusions as their own and approve the preliminary plat of La Buena Vida Estates 

- SUB 2016-005 with conditions.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion 

carried.   

 

Contract for Consultation of the Behavioral Health System 

 

Kyle Sullivan discussed the insurance issue regarding contracting with Leon Evans for 

consultation of the behavioral health system.  He said Mr. Evans performed these consultations 

separate from his business and did not have the required professional liability insurance.  He said 

he talked to Lexi Wingfield and asked Mr. Evans if he would be willing to purchase the insurance 

but he did not yet have an answer from him.   

 

There was a discussion regarding contracting with Rick Weaver to assist with the consultation, 

finding out Franklin County’s position on the contract/insurance issue, and use of mental health 

funds for the consultation. 

 

Commissioner Beaver stated that Benton County had insurance requirements and if Mr. Evans 

could not meet those requirements, then it could not contract with him.  Mr. Sullivan was instructed 

to meet with Franklin County and find out their position on the issue.   

 

Noxious Weed Budget Assessment  

 

Vic Reeves gave a Powerpoint presentation on Noxious Weed and discussed the following: 

 

o Emphasis on education opportunities and doing things differently 

o New website 

o Community outreach 

o Weed list mandated by the state 

o Cooperative partners 

o Working w/residents 



 - 4 - 

 

Mr. Reeves said the weed board approved a resolution to send to the Commissioners asking for an 

increase in the assessment of $1.00 per/parcel.  He said the increase was needed so they could hire 

another field employee and continue to move forward and develop the program.  He said the 

assessment had not increased in 20 years and Benton County had almost the lowest assessment 

(next to Walla Walla County) in his comparison of counties. He estimated that 60% of the parcels 

were residential city lots and admitted that service for the agricultural community was not where 

it should be but he only had one guy on the road and he was in the office doing the administrative 

duties.  He said the proposed budget would include another employee (3 total).  He said they had 

enough money to go two years but not beyond that and if the Board did not approve it he would 

have to come back again. 

 

Commissioner Delvin asked about attendance at the public meeting and Mr. Reeves said that two 

people showed up, a county employee and a wheat grower and there were no adverse comments 

received.  Commissioner Delvin said he understood the weed board was previously in disrepair 

and asked where that money was going.  Mr. Sparks said they originally had a director and three 

staff members and then it was reduced and then found out they only had one functioning board 

member.  He said they decided to make it a separate entity and the Conservation District board 

stepped up and took over and they were now on their own.   

 

Chairman Small said it was a good presentation and it appeared to be a new program but he had 

spoken to several farmers about this and the majority had not ever seen anyone from the weed 

district.  He said they were spending $1/2 to $10 million to eradicate their own weeds and he said 

he wanted him to hold tight and continue the program and start to sell the program.   

 

Mr. Reeves said there was a real misconception that the weed board was there to spray weeds but 

it was their job to get people to take care of weeds on their property.  He said he wanted to build 

the program so they were more visible but with one person out there it was difficult.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin move to accept the resolution requesting $1.00 per parcel 

assessment increase and approve the weed board’s 2017-2018 budget as presented.  The motion 

died for lack of a second.   

 

Jail Contract with Cities Discussion 

 

Ms. Smith Kelty said they had been reviewing and continuing the discussion regarding a new 

contract with the cities for use of the jail.  Additionally, the Board received a letter from the cities 

asking for a response by November 1.   

 

Ms. Smith Kelty presented a recommendation for the jail cost allocation using a five year rolling 

average.  She said the goal was to stabilize the revenue and make this equitable since the cities had 

the ability to control the amount of prisoners.  

  

They took the billable expenditures and broke them out according to the percentages; they would 

share revenue and billings based on percentages and it would change every year because it would 

be rolling.  Mr. Sparks said it was set from July to June so everyone knew their budget and the 



 - 5 - 

only unknown would be if the state and feds took out their prisoners.  Additionally, the County 

budgeted $1.2 million of the public safety tax for the jail so the cities would not be billed this 

portion and it would save the cities about $300,000. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the 2017-2018 Jail Cost Allocation proposal 

as presented by staff using the revenue sharing plus the five-year rolling average.  Commissioner 

Beaver seconded. 

 

Discussion 

 

Commissioner Beaver asked about the prisoner bed day rate for DOC and Mr. Hatcher said they 

were working on that; he said that hopefully this would take the swing out for the cities and Benton 

County.   

 

Chairman Small said the cities were getting a huge benefit from the County allocating public safety 

tax funds to the formula and the County continued to be a good partner.  He requested a letter be 

drafted to respond to the cities.   

 

Upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

The Board agreed to have Mr. Sparks draft a letter to be signed by the Board at the next board 

meeting.   

 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 10:30 a.m.   

 

2017-2018 Budget Discussion 

 

Mr. Sparks said the budget discussion was scheduled every week until December 6 when they 

needed to advertise and he needed direction on the following issues: 

  

 Shift costs in Current Expense budget to 3/10 budget (Gang Task Force, Metro Prosecutor 

and things of that nature) to alleviate the deficit; 

 Keeping the levy rate the same; 

 Cash flowing elections and operational costs – pre-funding out of reserves; 

 Eliminating 3 District Court positions that were unfilled 

 

The Board agreed.  Mr. Sparks said those decisions would bring Current Expense within a 

manageable deficit with granting zero requests.  He said he wanted to review the 3/10 budget 

requests separately.   

 

Chairman Small said the departments really needed to look at their budgets to see what they could 

do to assist so they didn’t have a huge hit in another two years.  Mr. Sparks commented it was 

imperative to have a balanced budget; that if they balanced with a $2 million deficit, in two more 

years it would be $6 million.  

 



 - 6 - 

He said he could meet with individual departments and would look at some one-time costs; he 

tried to highlight some one-time costs and wanted to look at pre-funding some items from cash 

carry over and then start to fine-tune the budget.   

 

Commissioner Beaver commented that he didn’t want to roll the dice with the 3/10 funds; he saw 

it as one-time expenditures, not ongoing operational costs because he didn’t know how the voters 

would vote in 10 years.  Chairman Small said they needed to look at it carefully to make sure the 

programs could be sustained. 

 

Mr. Sparks recapped that he would prepare a new worksheet with the changes: eliminating three 

positions in District Court, prefunding some cash flow in Elections, keeping the levy rate the same, 

and moving the Gang Task Force into 3/10. 

 

Undersheriff Hatcher said he would lose 12-17 officers in the Gang Task Force if it didn’t pass 

and would rather shift a monetary amount, not that particular team, in case that funding went away 

since that was really the only pro-active team out there in Benton County.   

 

Other Business 

 

David Sparks suggested the Board either cancel the November 29 board meeting or keep the 

meeting to a consent agenda only due to the Thanksgiving holiday. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Beaver moved to cancel the November 29 board meeting.  

Commissioner Delvin seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.  

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

 

Cary Watts, Richland, WA via/videoconference said he owned property on Candy Mountain and 

was interested in swapping and/or donating property to the County so they could bring up utilities 

and access to the properties on the north side.    He said he had been in contact with Adam Fyall 

and wanted to know what the next step was.   

 

Chairman Small suggested he continue to work with Adam Fyall and the Planning Dept. to see 

what could be done.  Mr. Fyall indicated he had Mr. Watts’ phone number and would call him.   

 

Account Payables 

 

Check Date 10/28/16 

 

Warrants #147429-147516 

Total of all Funds $ 449,196.35 

 

Transfers #10281601-10281608 

Total of all Funds $547,522.60 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 



 - 7 - 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-843: Agreement w/M Dolven for Family Law Facilitator Services   

2016-844: Reappointment of S LePage to Mid-Columbia Libraries Board of Trustees  

2016-845: Contract w/Washington Collectors for Collection Services  

2016-846: Payment Authorization to Kone, Inc for Elevator Services  

2016-847: Contract w/Fire Systems West, Inc. for Fire Alarm Maintenance & Testing  

2016-848: Purchase of Workstations & Monitors from Dell Premier for Public Works  

2016-849: Public Access Easement Near Candy Mountain  

2016-850: Agreement w/Columbia Irrigation District for Purchase of Raw Material from 

Owens Quarry   

2016-851: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500   

2016-852: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 120  

2016-853: Agreement w/A Armijo for Interpreting Services 

2016-854: Proclamation for National Adoption Day 

2016-855: Adopting the 2017-2022 Benton County Capital Improvement Plan 

2016-856: Approving Change order No. 1 with MG Wagner – Justice Center Reroof Project  

2016-857: Approval of Preliminary Plat Application – SUB 2016-005 – La Buena Vida 

Estates 

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:52 

a.m.   

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



WEH
Text Box
a. Contract w/Vista Veterinary Hospital for Spay & Neutering Services





































WEH
Text Box
b. Contract w/Vista Veterinary Hospital for Veterinarian Medical Services





































WEH
Text Box
c. Contract w/S Morris Co. for Pet Cremation Services



































WEH
Text Box
d. Contract w/Municipal Research & Services Center for Small Works/Vendor Roster Services









Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000-101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 115

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
e. Line Item Transfer, Fund No 0000-101, Dept. 115



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 115 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 110

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

511.600 4931 Fenced Item Contingency $500,000 597.100 0009 T/O to Election Reserve $500,000

TOTAL $500,000 TOTAL $500,000

Explanation:

Prepared by: P. Schut Date:  02-Nov-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

On November 1, 2016 the County Administrator was authorized, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, to transfer $500,000 to Election 

Reserve Fund (0111-101) during the 2015-2016 Budget. The proposed transfer in 2017-2018 Biennium Budget will be reduced from  $1,247,257 to 

$747,257. 

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Non-Departmental 

Current Expense

115

0000-101



WEH
Text Box
f. Amended Agreement #2 w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee for Operating Housing & Essential Needs Program











WEH
Text Box
g. Purchase of Cisco Web Security Appliances, Firepower Licenses & Subscription from Cerium Networks









WEH
Text Box
h. Purchase of Laptop from PCS Mobile for Sheriff’s Mobile Command Center









Dated this day of , 

Attest:

Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 138

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

WEH
Text Box
i. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

527.235 4103 Professional Services $3,389 527.235 1911 Temporary Help $2,600

2102 Social Security $199

2104 Retirement $590

TOTAL $3,389 TOTAL $3,389

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  14-Oct-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Under the Selective Agressive Probation program (SAP), JJC budgeted dollars under Professional Services for a part time CSEC advisor, the position is

currently filled with part-time temporary help until a contract provider can be identified. 

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Adult & Juvenile Drug Court 138

Current Expense 0000101



AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date:  08 Nov 2016 
Subject: RMSF Well Drilling 
Memo Date:  31 Oct 2016 
Prepared By:  AJF 
Reviewed By:  Shyanne F. 

ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract X 
Pass Resolution X 
Pass Ordinance  
Pass Motion  
None    

DISCUSSION TYPE 
Consent Agenda X 
Public Hearing  
1st Discussion  
2nd Discussion  
Other    

 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Parks Department staff has proposed a contract with Nelson Drilling of Pasco for the drilling of a new 
replacement groundwater well at the Rattlesnake Mountain Shooting Facility (the “Range”). 

 

 

BACKGROUND & DESCRIPTION 
 
The main well at the Range is failing.  It is both too shallow, and the sides are collapsing because it was not 
cased very deeply.  The Park Board wants to assist the Tri-Cities Shooting Association in replacing the well, as 
TCSA has been a very good tenant and has made over $1 million in improvements at the Range over the 
years. 
 
The new well will be in the same location (same vicinity, not the precise spot).  It will be deeper, wider, and 
fully cased.  The old well will be capped and decommissioned. 
 
As the resolution details, staff is not recommending the lowest bid be taken for this project.  A lower quote 
was presented to TCSA (not the County directly), and staff’s attempts to follow-up with that bidder were 
unsuccessful for several weeks.  Because of the inability to contact the respondent (Five Star Drilling), and 
because of questions about the very low number that was presented, staff decided to go with the second 
respondent (Nelson Drilling), with whom the County has done business in the recent past.  Staff has reviewed 
this decision with the Prosecutor. 
 
Benton County will carry the contract and pay for the project from the Park Development Fund. 
 
The Prosecutor has reviewed the contract for form, Personnel has reviewed the insurance.  The contractor 
has signed the contract. 
 
The contractor is ready to mobilize and the work shall be completed by December 31, 2016. 
 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The contract’s not-to-exceed limit is $25,000, to be paid from the Park Development Fund. 
 
 

# # # 

WEH
Text Box
j. Contract w/Nelson Drilling for Well Drilling @ Rattlesnake Mountain Shooting Facility



 RESOLUTION 

  
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF A PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT WITH NELSON DRILLING, LLC 

FOR DRILLING OF A WELL AT THE RATTLESNAKE MOUNTAIN SHOOTING FACILITY 
 

 
WHEREAS, Benton County manages the Rattlesnake Mountain Shooting Facility (“Facility”) as a 
recreational venue within its parks system, and the Tri-Cities Shooting Association (“TCSA”), a 
Richland-based non-profit organization, operates the Facility on behalf of the County under the 
terms of a Concessionaire Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, TCSA is responsible for all maintenance and upkeep of the Facility, including all 
capital improvements, but on occasion the Benton County Parks Department elects to partner with 
TCSA on certain projects where the staff, Park Board, and Board of Commissioners determine that 
such projects are in the mutual interest of all parties, especially if the projects are of a larger cost 
scale, and recent examples of such partnerships were the construction of new restrooms and 
emplacement of a new flag garden at the main entrance to the Facility; and, 
 
WHEREAS, TCSA remains an excellent partner for the County, in good standing and in full 
compliance with their Concessionaire Agreement; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Facility’s primary water supply comes from an aging well that was drilled relatively 
shallow and perhaps not to the highest standards, and this existing well is beginning to fail: and, 
 
WHEREAS, TCSA and the Parks Department agree that replacement of the existing well with a 
new, deeper, wider well, constructed to current industry standards, is in the best long-term interest 
for the parties and for the investments made at the Facility over the past three decades; and, 
 
WHEREAS, proposals were sought from four potential contractors for the drilling of the new well, 
but only two estimates were received: 
 Nelson Drilling, LLC  Pasco WA  $ 22,401.50 
 Five Star Drilling  Dayton WA  $    8,669.42 
 
WHEREAS, County staff made multiple efforts by telephone to reach Five Star Drilling at the 
number provide on their estimate, and also sought email or internet contact channels but could find 
none; and, 
 
WHEREAS, County staff also had questions about the amount of the Five Star Drilling estimate, as 
it seemed particularly low, especially since the operator would have to mobilize from Dayton; and, 
 
WHEREAS, County staff is familiar with the work of Nelson Drilling, having previously contracted 
with this company for the well drilled in 2014 at Higgins Field in Horn Rapids Park, and knows of 
this contractor’s ability to deliver on services at the quoted price; and, 
 
WHEREAS, County staff recommended that in this case the County not take the lower quoting 
respondent, due to the inability to contact the respondent, questions about the quote, and comfort 
level with the second respondent who had the higher quoted cost: NOW THEREFORE, 
 
 
 
 
 



BE IT RESOLVED, by the Benton County Board of Commissioners that the Chairman of the Board 
is hereby authorized to sign a public works contract with Nelson Drilling, LLC of Pasco, Washington 
for the drilling of a new groundwater well at the Rattlesnake Mountain Shooting Facility, and for the 
capping of the old well that the new well is replacing.  The amount of the contract is not to exceed 
$25,000.00, which shall be paid from the Park Development Fund.  The contractor shall have until 
December 31, 2016 to complete the contract work unless the contract is amended. 
 
 
Dated this  ___________ day of ___________________ , 2016. 
 
 
 ________________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
 ________________________________                
 Member 
 
 
 ________________________________                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 

         Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

orig: Parks 
cc: Nelson Drilling, Tri-Cities Shooting Association Prepared by:  A.J. Fyall 



 

 

- 1 - 

PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

THIS CONTRACT is made and entered into by and between BENTON 

COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 

Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "COUNTY"), and 

NELSON DRILLING, LLC, a limited liability corporation organized 

under the laws of the State of Washington, with its principal 

offices at 600 West Vineyard Drive, Pasco, Washington 

99301(hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"). 

 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained 

herein, the parties agree as follows: 

 

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS 

 

This Contract consists of these terms and conditions and the 

following documents: 

 

a. Exhibit A – Contractor Estimate; and 

b. Exhibit B – Washington State Prevailing Wage Rates for 

Journey Level Well Drillers and Irrigation Pump Installers 

in Benton County (October 17, 2016). 

 

2. DURATION OF CONTRACT 

 

The term of this Contract shall begin immediately upon execution 

by both parties, and shall expire on December 31, 2016. The 

CONTRACTOR shall complete all work by the time(s) specified herein, 

or if no such time is otherwise specified, no later than the 

expiration date. 

 

3. SERVICES PROVIDED 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the following services: 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR agrees to drill a new water well to replace an 

existing, failing water well at the Rattlesnake Mountain 

Shooting Facility, located at 90908 N. SR 225, Benton City, 

WA 99320, in accordance with CONTRACTOR’s estimate attached 

hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

Following completion of the new well, the CONTRACTOR will 

decommission the existing well. Work performed by the 

CONTRACTOR shall include drilling of one (1) new well, sealing 

the existing well, and submitting appropriate documentation 

such as a Notice of Intent and Well Log to the Washington 

State Department of Ecology. In the event that the requested 



 

 

- 2 - 

work encompasses work that is legally required to be completed 

by another type of contractor, CONTRACTOR shall inform COUNTY 

of that fact and shall coordinate with COUNTY to complete the 

work in conjunction with the other contractor. In the event 

that the requested work requires, under State or local law, 

the issuance of a building or other permit, CONTRACTOR shall 

be responsible for procuring such permit and arranging for 

inspection and certification of the work. CONTRACTOR may bill 

COUNTY for the full cost of the permit and any labor time for 

any of its employees involved in the permitting process, but 

may not charge any additional processing or other fees that 

it does not actually incur. Thereafter, upon completion of 

services, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that a completed work 

order, detailing the work done, the time expended, and the 

parts used, is remitted to the COUNTY’s Contract 

Representative, or his designee, prior to CONTRACTOR leaving 

the work site.  

 

b. The CONTRACTOR agrees to provide its own labor and materials. 

Unless otherwise provided in this Contract, no material, 

labor, or facilities will be furnished by the COUNTY.  

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall perform the work specified in this 

Contract according to standard industry practice. 

 

d. The CONTRACTOR shall complete its work in a timely manner and 

in accordance with the schedule agreed by the parties. 

 

e. The CONTRACTOR shall confer with the COUNTY from time to time 

during the progress of the work. The CONTRACTOR shall prepare 

and present status reports and other information that may be 

pertinent and necessary, or as may be requested by the COUNTY. 

 

4. CONTRACT REPRESENTATIVES 

 

Each party to this Contract shall have a Contract Representative. 

Each party may change its representative upon providing written 

notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as 

follows: 

 

a. For CONTRACTOR:  

Josh Burns 

600 West Vineyard Drive 

Pasco, WA 99301 

(509) 547-3018 

nelsondrilling3018@yahoo.com  

   



 

 

- 3 - 

b. For COUNTY:  

Adam Fyall 

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

(509) 736-3053 

adam.fyall@co.benton.wa.us 

 

5. COMPENSATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall be paid for performing water well 

drilling and sealing services in accordance with Section 3 of 

this Contract and Exhibit A. No payment shall be made for any 

work performed by the CONTRACTOR, except for work identified 

and set forth in this Contract. 

 

b. The total amount payable by the COUNTY to the CONTRACTOR under 

this Contract may not exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars and 

Zero Cents ($25,000.00), including W.S.S.T. Any dollar amount 

above the maximum payable amount will only be approved with 

an amendment to this Contract. Prior to any compensation being 

paid, CONTRACTOR shall submit a Statement of Intent to Pay 

Prevailing Wages via https://secureaccess.wa.gov/ and then 

forward a copy of the statement to COUNTY’S Contract 

Representative. At the completion of all work contemplated by 

this Contract, or at the end of the contract term, whichever 

comes first, CONTRACTOR shall submit an Affidavit of Wages 

Paid via https://secureaccess.wa.gov/ and forward a copy to 

COUNTY’S Contract Representative. No final payment will be 

made until the Affidavit is provided. COUNTY requires that 

all Statements of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and 

Affidavits of Wages Paid be filed electronically with 

https://secureaccess.wa.gov/. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR may invoice the COUNTY for filing fees paid to 

the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries for 

filing one Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages and 

one Affidavit of Wages Paid. 

 

6. INVOICING 

 

The CONTRACTOR may submit invoices to the COUNTY for services that 

have been performed as they are performed, but shall not submit 

invoices more than once per calendar month. Such invoices shall 

detail the work done, the personnel involved, and the date of 

service, and shall also reference the work order provided to the 

COUNTY as required in Section 3 of this Contract. At such time as 

the first invoice is submitted, or any time thereto, CONTRACTOR, 



 

 

- 4 - 

as well as all subcontractors and sub-subcontractors that are 

employed by the CONTRACTOR for the work contemplated by this 

Contract, shall submit a Statement of Intent to Pay Prevailing 

Wages via https://secureaccess.wa.gov and forward a copy to the 

COUNTY’s Contract Representative. The CONTRACTOR shall not be paid 

for services rendered under this Contract until a Statement of 

Intent to Pay Prevailing Wages has been executed and submitted as 

required above by all required parties and the services have been 

performed to the COUNTY’s satisfaction. COUNTY shall only be liable 

to pay for invoiced amounts that are detailed and supported as 

described in this Section. The COUNTY shall authorize payment when 

the work billed is accepted by the COUNTY, and will remit payment, 

less any retainage or other legally withheld funds, for the 

accepted work within thirty (30) days after receiving the invoice.  

 

PROVIDED that for each invoiced and approved progress payment, 

COUNTY shall withhold from the earned portion of that payment (i.e. 

excluding sales or other tax) five percent (5%) as retainage 

pursuant to RCW 60.28.011, subject to all further provisions of 

the remainder of RCW Chapter 60.28. Within ten (10) days following 

the execution of this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall submit written 

notice stating its election of the method of holding of moneys 

retained, pursuant to RCW 60.28.011(4). If such written election 

is not received, then the COUNTY may choose any of the allowed 

manners of holding the moneys allowed by RCW 60.28.011(4)(a)-(c). 

 

7. AMENDMENTS AND CHANGES IN WORK 

 

a. In the event of any errors or omissions by the CONTRACTOR in 

the performance of any work required under this Contract, 

the CONTRACTOR shall make any and all necessary corrections 

without additional compensation. All work submitted by the 

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the CONTRACTOR and checked 

for errors and omissions. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible 

for the accuracy of the work, even if the work is accepted 

by the COUNTY.  

 

b. No amendment or modification shall be made to this Contract, 

unless set forth in a written Contract Amendment signed by 

both parties. Work under a Contract Amendment shall not 

proceed until the Contract Amendment is duly executed by the 

COUNTY. 

 

8. HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFICATION 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend 

the COUNTY and its officers, officials, employees, and agents 



 

 

- 5 - 

from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, 

liabilities, losses, expenses, damages, and judgments of any 

nature whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' 

fees in defense thereof, for injury, sickness, disability, 

or death to persons or damage to property or business, 

arising in connection with the work performed under this 

Contract, or caused or occasioned in whole or in part by 

reason of the presence of the CONTRACTOR or its 

subcontractors or their property upon or in the proximity of 

the property of the COUNTY. PROVIDED, that the CONTRACTOR'S 

obligation hereunder shall not extend to injury, sickness, 

death, or damage caused by or arising out of the sole 

negligence of the COUNTY, its officers, officials, employees 

or agents. In the event of the concurrent negligence of the 

CONTRACTOR or its subcontractors, employees, or agents, and 

the COUNTY or its employees or agents, this indemnification 

obligation of the CONTRACTOR shall be valid and enforceable 

only to the extent of the negligence of the CONTRACTOR and 

its subcontractors, employees, and agents. 

 

b. In any and all claims against the COUNTY and its officers, 

officials, employees, and agents by any employee of the 

CONTRACTOR, any subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly 

employed by any of them, or anyone for whose acts any of them 

may be liable, the indemnification obligation under this 

Section shall not be limited in any way by any limitation on 

the amount or type of damages, compensation, or benefits 

payable by or for the CONTRACTOR or subcontractor under 

Workers Compensation acts, disability benefit acts, or other 

employee benefit acts, it being clearly agreed and understood 

by the parties hereto that the CONTRACTOR expressly waives 

any immunity the CONTRACTOR might have had under such laws, 

including but not limited to Title 51 of the Revised Code of 

Washington. By executing this Contract, the CONTRACTOR 

acknowledges that the foregoing waiver has been mutually 

negotiated by the parties and that the provisions of this 

Section shall be incorporated, as relevant, into any contract 

the CONTRACTOR makes with any subcontractor or agent 

performing work hereunder. CONTRACTOR’S obligations under 

this Section 8 shall survive termination and expiration of 

this Contract. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR'S obligations hereunder shall include, but 

are not limited to, investigating, adjusting, and defending 

all claims alleging loss from action, error, or omission, or 

breach of any common law, statutory, or other delegated duty 

by the CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents, or 



 

 

- 6 - 

subcontractors. The foregoing indemnification obligations of 

the CONTRACTOR are a material inducement to COUNTY to enter 

into this Contract, are reflected in the CONTRACTOR’s 

compensation, and have been mutually negotiated by the 

parties. 

 

9. INSURANCE 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall obtain and maintain continuously, the 

following insurance: 

 

a. Workers Compensation: CONTRACTOR shall comply with all State 

of Washington workers compensation statutes and regulations. 

Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers 

compensation coverage shall be provided for all employees of 

CONTRACTOR and employees of any subcontractor or sub-

subcontractor. Coverage shall include bodily injury 

(including death) by accident or disease, which arises out 

of or in connection with the performance of this Contract. 

CONTRACTOR shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 

from the Washington State Department of Labor and Industries 

prior to commencement of work. Except as prohibited by law, 

CONTRACTOR waives all rights of subrogation against the 

COUNTY for recovery of damages to the extent they are covered 

by workers compensation and employers liability. 

 

If CONTRACTOR, subcontractor, or sub-subcontractor fails to 

comply with all State of Washington workers compensation 

statutes and regulations and COUNTY incurs fines or is 

required by law to provide benefits to or obtain coverage 

for such employees, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the COUNTY. 

Indemnity shall include all fines, payment of benefits to 

CONTRACTOR or subcontractor employees, or their heirs or 

legal representatives, and the cost of effecting coverage on 

behalf of such employees. Any amount owed to COUNTY by 

CONTRACTOR pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be 

deducted from any payments owed by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR for 

performance of this Contract. 

 

b. Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability 

Insurance: Prior to the start of work under this Contract, 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability 

coverage (policy form CG0001 or equivalent) to protect the 

CONTRACTOR from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, 

personal injury and property damage, which may arise from 

any actions or inactions under this Contract by CONTRACTOR 

or by anyone directly employed by or contracting with 



 

 

- 7 - 

CONTRACTOR. The minimum commercial general liability 

insurance limits shall be as follows: 

 

$2,000,000 General Aggregate 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 

$1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 

$1,000,000 Each Occurrence 

 

The commercial general liability policy will contain an 

endorsement naming the COUNTY and its elected and appointed 

officials, employees, and agents as an Additional Insured 

and an endorsement that specifically states that CONTRACTOR’s 

commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and 

not contributory, with any other insurance maintained by the 

COUNTY. 

 

The CONTRACTOR will provide commercial general liability 

coverage that does not exclude any activity to be performed 

in fulfillment of this Contract and does not exclude 

liability pursuant to the indemnification requirement under 

Section 8. CONTRACTOR'S commercial general liability policy 

shall provide cross liability coverage, indicating 

essentially that except with respect to the limits of 

insurance and any rights or duties specifically assigned in 

this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance 

applies as if each named insured were the only named insured, 

and separately to each insured against whom claims are made 

or suit is brought. 

 

CONTRACTOR shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability 

Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 

 

$1,000,000 Each Accident 

$1,000,000 Policy Limit for Disease 

$1,000,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 

c. Automobile Liability: The CONTRACTOR shall maintain, during 

the life of this Contract, Automobile Liability Insurance 

(ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto 

(Symbol 1), or if the CONTRACTOR has no owned autos, any 

hired (Symbol 8) and non-owned autos (Symbol 9), in the 

amount of not less than one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 

accident for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect 

CONTRACTOR from claims which may arise from the performance 

of this Contract, whether such operations be by the 

CONTRACTOR or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by 

the CONTRACTOR.  



 

 

- 8 - 

 

d. Other Insurance Provisions: 

 

1. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance provisions shall be 

primary with respect to any insurance or self-insurance 

programs covering the COUNTY and its elected and 

appointed officers, officials, employees, and agents. 

CONTRACTOR’S liability insurance policies must be 

endorsed to show this primary coverage. Any insurance, 

self-insured retention, deductible, or risk retention 

maintained or participated in by the COUNTY shall be 

excess and not contributory to CONTRACTOR’S insurance 

policies. 

 

2. The CONTRACTOR'S liability insurance policies shall 

contain no special limitations on the scope of 

protection afforded to the COUNTY as an additional 

insured.  

 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the 

policies shall not affect coverage provided to the 

COUNTY or its officers, officials, employees, or agents.  

 

4. The CONTRACTOR'S insurance shall apply separately to 

each insured against whom claim is made or suit is 

brought, except with respect to the limits of the 

insurer's liability.  
 

5. The CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors as 

insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate 

certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. 

All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all 

of the requirements stated herein.  

 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage 

required by this Contract are not intended to be an 

indication of exposure nor are they limitations on 

indemnification. If the CONTRACTOR maintains higher 

limits than the minimums required in this Contract, the 

COUNTY shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 

limits maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

 

7. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain all required policies in 

force from the time services commence until services are 

completed. Certificates, policies, and endorsements 

expiring before completion of services shall be promptly 

replaced. CONTRACTOR is required to maintain claims made 



 

 

- 9 - 

professional liability insurance for a minimum of 36 

months after the effective date of termination or 

completion of this Contract. All liability insurance 

required under this Contract shall be written on an 

Occurrence Policy form.  

 

8. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to waive subrogation with 

respect to each insurance policy maintained under this 

Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy 

condition does not permit CONTRACTOR to enter into a 

pre-loss agreement to waive subrogation without an 

endorsement, then CONTRACTOR agrees to notify the 

insurer and obtain such endorsement. This requirement 

shall not apply to any policy which includes a condition 

expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the 

insured or which voids coverage should the CONTRACTOR 

enter into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre-loss 

basis.  

 

9. Compensation and/or payments due to CONTRACTOR under 

this Agreement are expressly conditioned upon 

CONTRACTOR’S strict compliance with all insurance 

requirements. Payment to CONTRACTOR may be suspended in 

the event of non-compliance. Upon receipt of evidence of 

CONTRACTOR’S compliance, such payments not otherwise 

subject to withholding or set-off will be released to 

CONTRACTOR. 

 

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers: 

 

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued 

by companies authorized to do business under the laws of the 

State of Washington that have an A. M. Best's rating of at 

least A-VII or better in the most recently published edition 

of Best’s Reports. Any exception to this requirement must be 

reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk 

Manager. If an insurer is not admitted to do business within 

Washington State, all insurance policies and procedures for 

issuing the insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 

RCW and Chapter 284-15 WAC. 

 

1. All insurance to be maintained by the CONTRACTOR, other 

than Auto Liability and Workers’ Compensation, shall 

specifically include the COUNTY and its elected 

officials, employees, and volunteers as an “Additional 

Insured” by way of endorsement and shall not be reduced 

or canceled without thirty (30) days written prior 



 

 

- 10 - 

notice to the COUNTY. Any insurance or self-insurance 

maintained by the COUNTY and its elected and appointed 

officials, employees, and agents shall be excess of the 

CONTRACTOR’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements 

attached, are to be provided to the COUNTY’s Contract 

Representative referenced in Section 4. 

  

3. All written notices under this Section 9 and notice of 

cancellation or change of required insurance coverages 

shall be mailed to the COUNTY’s Contract Representative 

referenced in Section 4.  

 

4. The CONTRACTOR or its broker shall provide a copy of any 

and all insurance policies specified in this Contract 

upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the 

following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. 

Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336. 

 

10. PERFORMANCE BOND 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish Benton County with a Performance Bond 

and a Labor and Materials Payment Bond with sufficient sureties 

acceptable to Benton County, in an amount equal to one hundred 

percent (100%) of the contract sum as security for the performance 

by the CONTRACTOR of this Contract and payment of all the persons 

performing labor and supplying materials pursuant to this 

Contract. PROVIDED that CONTRACTOR may elect, in lieu of the bond, 

to allow COUNTY to retain fifty percent (50%) of the contract 

amount for a period of thirty (30) days after date of final 

acceptance, or until receipt of all necessary releases from the 

Washington State Department of Revenue and the Washington State 

Department of Labor and Industries and settlement of any liens 

filed under chapter 60.28 RCW, whichever is later. Proof of the 

performance bond, or written notification of the CONTRACTOR’S 

desire to elect the alternative to the bond described above, must 

be received by COUNTY within ten (10) days following the execution 

of this Contract.  

 

11. NON-WAIVER OF RIGHTS 

 

The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, 

or waiver of any provision(s) of this Contract does not constitute 

a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice 

the right of the waiving party to enforce any of the provisions of 

this Contract at a later time. All waivers of any provision(s) of 



 

 

- 11 - 

this Contract shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no 

action or inaction shall be construed to be such a waiver. 

 

12. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

 

a. The CONTRACTOR'S services shall be furnished by the 

CONTRACTOR as an independent contractor and not as an agent, 

employee or servant of the COUNTY. The CONTRACTOR 

specifically has the right to direct and control CONTRACTOR'S 

own activities in providing the agreed services in accordance 

with the specifications set out in this Contract. 

 

b. The CONTRACTOR acknowledges that the entire compensation for 

this Contract is set forth in Section 5 of this Contract, 

and neither the CONTRACTOR nor its employees are entitled to 

any COUNTY benefits, including, but not limited to: vacation 

pay; holiday pay; sick leave pay; medical, dental, or other 

insurance benefits; fringe benefits; or any other rights or 

privileges afforded to COUNTY employees. 

 

c. The CONTRACTOR shall have and maintain complete 

responsibility and control over all of its subcontractors, 

employees, agents, and representatives. No subcontractor, 

employee, agent, or representative of the CONTRACTOR shall 

be, deem to be, act, or purport to act as an employee, agent, 

or representative of the COUNTY. 

 

d. CONTRACTOR shall pay for all taxes, fees, licenses, or 

payments required by federal, state, or local laws which are 

now or may be enacted during the term of this Contract. 

 

e. The CONTRACTOR agrees to immediately remove any of its 

employees or agents from their assignment to perform services 

under this Contract upon receipt of a written request to do 

so from the COUNTY'S Contract Representative, or designee. 

 

13. INSPECTION OF BOOKS AND RECORDS 

 

The COUNTY may, at reasonable times, inspect the books and records 

of the CONTRACTOR relating to the performance of this Contract. 

The CONTRACTOR shall keep, and make available to the COUNTY upon 

request, all records relating to the performance of this Contract 

for six (6) years after Contract termination or expiration. 

 

14. CHOICE OF LAW AND JURISDICTION 

 

This Contract has been and shall be construed as having been made 



 

 

- 12 - 

and delivered within the State of Washington, and it is agreed by 

each party hereto that this Contract shall be governed by the laws 

of the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and 

performance. 

 

15. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

 

The COUNTY, to the extent permitted by law, and the CONTRACTOR 

each bind themselves and their partners, successors, executors, 

administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Contract 

and to the partners, successors, administrators, and assigns of 

such other party in respect to all covenants to this Contract. 

 

16. TERMINATION 

 

The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part whenever 

the COUNTY determines in its sole discretion that such termination 

is in the best interests of the COUNTY. The COUNTY may terminate 

this Contract upon giving ten (10) days written notice by certified 

mail to the CONTRACTOR. In that event, the COUNTY shall pay the 

CONTRACTOR for actual costs incurred by the CONTRACTOR in 

performing the Contract up to the date of such notice. Payment 

shall be made in accordance with Section 6 of this Contract. 

Nothing in this Section shall limit the rights of the COUNTY 

pursuant to this Contract or applicable law. 

 

17. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND PREVAILING WAGES 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, 

and local laws, rules, and regulations in performing this Contract, 

including, but not limited to, prevailing wage laws. Specifically, 

at a minimum, the prevailing wages set out in Exhibit B, which is 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, shall be 

paid to all employees, agents, subcontractors or sub-

subcontractors who do any work for CONTRACTOR on this project. 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all subcontractors or sub-

subcontractors sign an agreement to pay these same wages, and that 

such a signed agreement is submitted to COUNTY prior to 

subcontractor commencing any work on the project. This schedule is 

duplicated from the Washington State Department of Labor and 

Industries’ website, it is provided for informational purposes 

only, and COUNTY takes no responsibility for any inaccuracies or 

ambiguities contained therein. If CONTRACTOR believes the schedule 

contains any such ambiguities or inaccuracies, then CONTRACTOR is 

responsible for contacting the Washington State Department of 

Labor and Industries directly to resolve them. Perceived 

inaccuracies or ambiguities in the schedule shall not relieve 



 

 

- 13 - 

CONTRACTOR from its obligation pursuant to this Contract and 

relevant law to pay prevailing wages. 

 

18. NONDISCRIMINATION 

 

The CONTRACTOR and its assignees, delegates, and subcontractors 

shall not discriminate against any person in the performance of 

any of its obligations hereunder on the basis of race, color, 

creed, religion, national origin, age, sex, marital status, sexual 

orientation, veteran status, or the presence of any disability. 

 

19. DISPUTES 

 

Disputes over the CONTRACTOR’s performance shall be promptly 

addressed in writing by the aggrieved party in order that such 

matters may be settled or other appropriate action promptly taken. 

Any dispute relating to the quality or acceptability of performance 

and/or compensation due the CONTRACTOR shall be decided by the 

COUNTY’S Contract Representative, or designee. All rulings, 

orders, instructions, and decisions of the COUNTY'S Contract 

Representative shall be final and conclusive, subject to 

CONTRACTOR'S right to seek judicial relief.  

 

20. ASSIGNMENT, DELEGATION, AND SUBCONTRACTING 

 

The CONTRACTOR shall perform the services under this Contract using 

only its bona fide employees or agents, and the obligations and 

duties of the CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not be assigned, 

delegated, or subcontracted to any other person or firm without 

the prior written consent of the COUNTY. 

 

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

 

The parties agree that this Contract is the complete expression of 

their agreement. Any oral or written representations or 

understandings not incorporated in this Contract are specifically 

excluded. 

 

22. NOTICES 

 

Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other 

party or if mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt 

requested, to the addresses set out in Section 4 above. Notice may 

also be given by facsimile with the original to follow by regular 

mail. Notice shall be deemed to be effective three days following 

the date of mailing or immediately if personally served. For 

service by facsimile, service shall be effective at the beginning 



 

 

- 14 - 

of the next working day. 

 

23. SEVERABILITY 

 

a. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term, or 

provision of this Contract to be illegal or invalid, in whole 

or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall 

not be affected, and the parties' rights and obligations shall 

be construed and enforced as if the Contract did not contain 

the particular provision held to be invalid. 

 

b. If it should appear that any provision of this Contract is in 

conflict with any statutory provision of the State of 

Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall 

be deemed inoperative and null and void insofar as it may be 

in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to conform 

to such statutory provision.  

 

24. LITIGATION HOLD NOTICE 

 

In the event the COUNTY learns of circumstances leading to an 

increased likelihood of litigation regarding any matter where the 

records kept by CONTRACTOR regarding the work performed under this 

Contract may be of evidentiary value, the COUNTY may issue written 

notice to CONTRACTOR of such circumstances and direct the 

CONTRACTOR to “hold” such records. In the event that CONTRACTOR 

receives such written notice, CONTRACTOR shall abide by all 

directions therein whether or not such written notice is received 

at a time when a Contract between CONTRACTOR and the COUNTY is in 

force. Such directions will include, but will not be limited to, 

instructions to suspend any regularly scheduled purge schedule. 

 

25. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 

 

CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges that the COUNTY is a governmental 

entity and as such is subject to the requirements of the Public 

Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, CONTRACTOR understands 

that to the extent a proper request is made, the COUNTY may be 

required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to 

this Contract actually in its possession or in CONTRACTOR’S 

possession. This may include records that CONTRACTOR might regard 

as confidential or proprietary. To the extent that CONTRACTOR 

provides any records to the COUNTY that it regards as confidential 

or proprietary, CONTRACTOR agrees to conspicuously mark the 

records as such. CONTRACTOR also hereby waives any and all claims 

or causes of action for any injury it may suffer by virtue of 

COUNTY’S release of records covered under the Public Records Act. 



 

 

- 15 - 

COUNTY agrees to take all reasonable steps to notify CONTRACTOR in 

a timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act 

which will require disclosure of any records marked by CONTRACTOR 

as confidential or proprietary, so that CONTRACTOR may seek a 

judicial order of protection if necessary. 

 

26. SURVIVABILITY 

 

All Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to 

survive the termination and/or expiration of this Contract, shall 

so survive. These terms include, but are not limited to, provisions 

for: indemnification; insurance; non-waiver; inspection of books 

and records; choice of law; compliance with laws; litigation hold; 

and the Public Records Act. 

 

27. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

The CONTRACTOR and its employees, subcontractors, and their 

employees shall maintain the confidentiality of all information 

provided by the COUNTY or acquired by the COUNTY in performance of 

this Contract, except upon the prior written consent of the COUNTY 

or an order entered by a court of competent jurisdiction. The 

CONTRACTOR shall promptly give the COUNTY written notice of any 

judicial proceeding seeking disclosure of such information.  

 

 

- This section was intentionally left blank – 

  







State of Washington 
Department of Labor & Industries 

Prevailing Wage Section ‐ Telephone 360‐902‐5335 
PO Box 44540, Olympia, WA 98504‐4540 

Washington State Prevailing Wage 
The PREVAILING WAGES listed here include both the hourly wage rate and the hourly rate of fringe
benefits. On public works projects, worker's wage and benefit rates must add to not less than this
total. A brief description of overtime calculation requirements are provided on the Benefit Code

Key.

Journey Level Prevailing Wage Rates for the Effective Date: 10/17/2016

County Trade Job Classification Wage Holiday Overtime Note
Benton Well Drillers & Irrigation Pump

Installers
Irrigation Pump Installer $11.15   1

Benton Well Drillers & Irrigation Pump
Installers

Oiler $9.47   1

Benton Well Drillers & Irrigation Pump
Installers

Well Driller $18.00   1

javascript:__doPostBack('grdWageLookUp','Sort$county_name')
javascript:__doPostBack('grdWageLookUp','Sort$trade')
javascript:__doPostBack('grdWageLookUp','Sort$job_classification_name')
javascript:__doPostBack('grdWageLookUp','Sort$total_wage')
javascript:info_onclick("http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=296-127-01391")
javascript:info_onclick("http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=296-127-01391")
javascript:info_onclick("http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=296-127-01391")


Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
WORKMEN'S COMPENSATION FUND NUMBER 0503101, DEPARTMENT 
NUMBER 000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
k. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0503-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

517.670 1577 Safety and Training Coordinator $400 517.670 2103 Medical Insurance $400

    

    

TOTAL $400 TOTAL $400

Explanation: 

Prepared by: L. Wingfield Date 31-Oct-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

An increase is needed for medical insurance due to an increased county contribution.

Workmen's Compensation

Workmen's Compensation

000

0503101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 127.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
l. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 127



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

518.100 1732 Personnel/Risk Manager $7,700 518.100 1736 Personnel Assistant $3,500

    518.100 1737 Personnel Secretary $1,200

    518.100 2103 Medical Insurance $3,000

TOTAL $7,700 TOTAL $7,700

Explanation: 

Prepared by: L. Wingfield Date 31-Oct-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

An increase is needed in salaries and benefits due to an increased COLA and county contribution.

Personnel

Current Expense

127

0000101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 114.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
m. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 114



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

517.220 4150 Medical Reimbursements $9,000 517.220 2103 Medical Insurance $9,000

    

    

TOTAL $9,000 TOTAL $9,000

Explanation: 

Prepared by: L. Wingfield Date 31-Oct-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

An increase is needed due to increase medical insurance rates

LEOFF

Current Expense

114

0000101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 105.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
n. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 105



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

521.100 4103 Professional Services $1,970 521.100 1202 Civil Service Secretary $1,150

    521.100 1202 FICA $50

    521.100 1203 Medical Insurance $580

521.100 2104 Retirement $190

TOTAL $1,970 TOTAL $1,970

Explanation: 

Prepared by: L. Wingfield Date 31-Oct-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

An increase is needed in salaries and benefits due to an increased COLA and county contribution.

Civil Service

Current Expense

105

0000101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN 
INSURANCE MANAGEMENT FUND NUMBER 0504101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 
000.

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that 
funds shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

WEH
Text Box
o. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0504-101, Dept. 000



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  TRANSFER TO: 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

518.610 1577 Safety/Training Coordinator $8,100 518.610 1543 Litigation/Risk Management Attorney $6,500

    518.610 2103 Medical Insurance $1,600

    

TOTAL $8,100 TOTAL $8,100

Explanation: 

Prepared by: L. Wingfield Date 31-Oct-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

An increase is needed in salaries and benefits due to an increased COLA and county contribution.

Insurance Management

Insurance Management

000

0504101



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

PUBLIC SAFETY TAX (3/10 OF 1%) FUND NUMBER 0148101, DEPARTMENT

NUMBER 171

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

WEH
Text Box
p. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 171



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

527.100 4103 Professional Services $1,700 527.100 1911 Temporary Help $1,700

TOTAL $1,700 TOTAL $1,700

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  14-Oct-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Under the Selective Agressive Probation program (SAP), JJC budgeted dollars under Professional Services for a part time CSEC advisor, position is

filled with part-time temporary help until a contract provider can be identified. 

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Juvenile - Operations 171

Public Safety Tax (3/10 of 1%) 0148101



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: November 8, 2016 

Subject: First Amendment to Personal 

Service Agreement between Benton 

County and Kiona-Benton City 

School District 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 

Reviewed by:  

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract        X 

Pass Resolution            X 

Pass Ordinance              

Pass Motion    

None    

 
 

 

Consent Agenda     X 

Public Hearing             

1st Discussion             

2nd Discussion             

Other              

 

SUMMARY 

Benton County would like to amend the service agreement with Kiona-Benton City School District for Kiona-Benton 

Crime Prevention Program under the Public Safety Tax, per Resolution 2016-567.  

 

Kiona-Benton City School District will use continued funds to provide youth in Benton City area that are at risk of 

dropping out or have dropped out with services for mental/medical health, educational and vocational resources, and 

an advocate. The Kiona-Benton Crime Prevention Program “seeks to reduce and eventually eliminate gang and other 

criminal activity for young people age 14-21 in the Benton City area.” 

 

Services include continued funding of site coordinator and the cost of maintaining a parenting class. 

 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

For the time period of August 1, 2016, through December 31, 2016, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated by the 

COUNTY in in an amount not to exceed twenty six thousand eight hundred dollars ($26,800).   

 

For the time period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated by 

COUNTY in an amount not to exceed forty-four thousand, one hundred twenty-seven dollars and twenty cents 

($44,127.20) (2016 year base expenses of $43,360 plus 2% increase).  

 

For the time period of January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, CONTRACTOR shall be compensated in the 

amount of thirty-three thousand six hundred eighty-two dollars and thirty-one cents ($33,682.31) (75% of total 2017 

year base expenses of $44,127.20 plus 2% increase). 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 Sign the Resolution to accept proposed agreement 

 Approve proposed agreement by signing all copies where indicated 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funding for the additional services as outlined in this amendment are provided by the Benton County Public Safety 

Tax. There is no impact on the current expense budget. All revenues and expenditures are from the Public Safety 

Tax Fund 0148-101. 

 

WEH
Text Box
q. Contract w/Kiona-Benton City School District for Crime Prevention Program



cc: Auditor; Treasurer; PA-Contract Compliance; Kiona-Benton City School District Faulconer 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE FIRST PERSONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

AMENDMENT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON AND KIONA-BENTON 

CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT FOR KIONA-BENTON CRIME PREVENTION PROGRAM 

 

WHEREAS, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR entered into a Personal Services Contract per 

Resolution 2016-567 dated July 19, 2016 (the “Contract”) whereby the CONTRACTOR has 

agreed to perform crime prevention services as set forth in the Contract, with a contract amount 

not to exceed twenty-six thousand, eight hundred dollars ($26,800); and 

 

WHEREAS, the attached first amendment is necessary to extend the duration of services provided 

by the CONTRACTOR through 2018; NOW THEREFORE, 

 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 

Washington, hereby concurs with the first amendment extending the Contract time through 

December 31, 2018 and increasing the Contract amount not to exceed a total 2016-2018 contract 

amount of one hundred four thousand six hundred nine dollars and fifty-one cents ($104,609.51); 

and 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the Board authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign the 

first contract amendment attached hereto. 

 

 

Dated this _______ day of ______________, 20____ 

 

 

 
       

Chairman of the Board  

 

       

Chairman Pro-Tem 

 

                

Member 

 

 

 Constituting the Board of County 

Attest: ………………………………………….. Commissioners of Benton County, 

           Clerk of the Board Washington 
 



1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO  

PERSONAL SERVICES CONTRACT  

BETWEEN  

BENTON COUNTY AND KIONA-BENTON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 

This First Contract Amendment, made and entered into this _______ day 

of __________, 2016 by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political 

subdivision of the State of Washington, with its principal offices at 

620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter “COUNTY”), and KIONA-

BENTON CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT, with its principal offices at 1105 Dale 

Ave., Benton City, WA 99320, (hereinafter “CONTRACTOR”). 

Recitals 

WHEREAS, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR entered into a Personal Services 

Contract per Resolution 2016-567 dated July 19, 2016 (the “Contract”) 

whereby the CONTRACTOR has agreed to perform crime prevention services 

as set forth in the Contract, with a contract amount not to exceed 

twenty-six thousand, eight hundred dollars ($26,800). 

WHEREAS, this First Amendment to the Contract is necessary to extend 

the duration of services provided by the CONTRACTOR through 2018; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the provisions and agreements set 

forth herein, the parties agree that all provisions of their original 

Contract shall remain in effect except the below sections which are 

amended as follows: 

a) Section 1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS – Exhibit C referenced in Section 1

is hereby deleted and replaced with the following document

attached hereto:

i) Exhibit C, Kiona-Benton Crime Prevention Program Budget

Worksheet.

b) Section 2.  DURATION OF CONTRACT – is hereby deleted and replaced 
in its entirety with the following:

The term of this Contract shall begin August 1, 2016 and shall

expire on December 31, 2018. The CONTRACTOR shall complete all

services by the time(s) specified herein, or if no such time is

otherwise specified, no later than the expiration date.



 2 

c) Section 5a. COMPENSATION – is hereby deleted and replaced in its 

entirety with the following:  

For the services performed hereunder, the CONTRACT shall be paid 

as follows: 

a. A detailed description of compensation to be paid by the 

COUNTY for the services set forth in Exhibit A is set forth 

in Exhibit C, “Kiona-Benton Crime Prevention Program Budget 

Worksheet” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein 

by reference. Accordingly, for the time period of August 1, 

2016, through December 31, 2016, CONTRACTOR shall be 

compensated by the COUNTY in an amount not to exceed twenty 

six thousand eight hundred dollars ($26,800).  For the time 

period of January 1, 2017, through December 31, 2017, 

CONTRACTOR shall be compensated by COUNTY in an amount not 

to exceed forty-four thousand, one hundred twenty-seven 

dollars and twenty cents ($44,127.20). For the time period 

of January 1, 2018 through December 31, 2018, CONTRACTOR 

shall be compensated in the amount of thirty-three thousand 

six hundred eighty-two dollars and thirty-one cents 

($33,682.31).  Total compensation by COUNTY to CONTRACTOR 

under this Contract shall not exceed one hundred four 

thousand six hundred nine dollars and fifty-one cents 

($104,609.51).  





August 2016 ‐ 

December 2018

PERSONNEL EXPSENSES 2016 2017 2018 Total

Salaries & Wages 12,000.00            27,948.00            28,506.96            68,454.96                  

Benefits 4,800.00              11,179.20            11,402.78            27,381.98                  

Percentage Funded 100% 100% 75% ‐                              

Personnel Total 16,800.00        39,127.20        29,932.31        85,859.51              

OTHER EXPENSES 2016 2017 2018 Total

Parenting Class Services 5,000.00              5,000.00              5,000.00              15,000.00                  

Equipment & Supplies 5,000.00              ‐                        ‐                        5,000.00                    

Percentage Funded 100% 100% 75% ‐                              

Other Expenses Total 10,000.00        5,000.00          3,750.00          18,750.00              

TOTAL  BUDGET 26,800.00        44,127.20 33,682.31 104,609.51

Benton County is requested to fund 100% of program budget for 2016 & 2017, 75% for 2018

The 2016 budget reflects a prorated budget for August‐December (5 months) rather than a full year.

EXHIBIT C: Kiona‐Benton Crime Prevention Program 

Budget Worksheet

Page 1 of 1



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Nov. 8, 2016       
Subject: Contract w/Crown 

Paper & Janitorial 
Supply Company 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  
   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X_ _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2016-692 dated September 13, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners solicited 
bids for the procurement of paper and glove supplies for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections and 
Sheriff’s Patrol. 
 
Per Resolution 2016-812 dated October 18, 2016, the Board of Commissioners deemed Crown Paper & 
Janitorial Supply Company to be the lowest responsible bidder for the purchase of paper and glove 
supplies and required them to enter into a purchase agreement as further stipulated in the bid documents. 
 

Attached is a purchase agreement between Benton County and Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply 
Company for a two-year agreement not to exceed $150,000 including WSST, for paper and glove supplies 
for the Benton County Corrections and Patrol. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Purchase Agreement between Benton County and Crown Paper & 
Janitorial Supply Company.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures have been included in the 2017/18 budget process.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
r. Agreement w/Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Co. for Paper & Glove Supplies



Orig: Sheriff’s Office   L. Small  
CC: Auditor; PA, Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
PAPER AND GLOVE SUPPLIES TO CROWN PAPER & JANITORIAL SUPPLY COMPANY FOR 
THE BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS AND SHERIFF’S PATROL.  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-692 dated September 13, 2016, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners solicited bids for the procurement of paper and glove supplies for the Benton County 
Bureau of Corrections and Sheriff’s Patrol; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-812 dated October 18, 2016, the Board of Commissioners deemed 
Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Company to be the lowest responsible bidder for the purchase of 
paper and glove supplies and required them to enter into a purchase agreement, as further stipulated 
in the bid documents; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
awards the attached purchase agreement to Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Company for the 
purchase of Paper and Glove Supplies for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections and Sheriff’s 
Patrol; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
purchase agreement between Benton County and Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Company for a 
contract amount not to exceed $150,000.00 including WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached purchase agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 
and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  

 
 
 
 
 
Dated this ________ day of __________________, 2016. 

 
 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

  
 ___________________________              

 Member 
 

Attest ……………………………………………  ___________________________                
                   Clerk of the Board       Member 

 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 



 

 

  
 

VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350  (hereinafter "County"), and CROWN PAPER & 
JANITORIAL SUPPLY COMPANY, 100 Avery Street, Walla Walla, WA 99362,  (hereinafter “Vendor). 
 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   

 
1.  Vendor agrees  to  furnish  to  the County  the products as  listed  in Exhibit A,  for Paper and Glove 
Supplies CB 16‐07 in accordance with its bid dated September 23, 2016 and to supply the product strictly in 
accordance with the specifications and requirements set forth therein.  The County anticipates purchasing 
the quantity of products provided  in  Exhibit A, but does not  guarantee  any  specific minimum quantity.  
Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the 
term of the Agreement. In the event the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a sale price 
to that provided in Exhibit A attached hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale price to the 
County for said item. Vendor further agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed herein during 
the course of this Agreement  it will provide a reasonable substitute of said products to the County at the 
same price.  What constitutes a reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be determined at 
the sole discretion of the County. 
 
2.  The Vendor's bid for Paper and Glove Supplies CB 16‐07, and corresponding documents, all of 
which  are  on  file  in  the  office  of  the  Benton  County  Sheriff’s Office,  shall  constitute  a  part  of  this 
Agreement and are by this reference incorporated and made a part of this Agreement as though fully set 
forth.   Each party expressly  covenants and agrees  to  carry out and  fully perform each and all of  the 
provisions of these documents upon its or his part to be performed. 
 
3.  County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an 
overall Agreement amount not to exceed $150,000.00, including Washington State Sales Tax.  A purchase 
order is required for each order.  The Vendor will supply the quantities of product requested by the County 
during the term of this Agreement. The Vendor may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more than once per 
month during the course of this Agreement.  Invoices shall cover the products supplied to the County during 
the billing period.  The County shall pay the Vendor for products provided in the month following the actual 
delivery of products and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 
 
4.  All  deliveries  are  to  be made  F.O.B.  Benton  County  Jail,  7122 W.  Okanogan  Place,  Bldg.  B, 
Kennewick, WA 99336 between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on 
regularly observed state or federal holidays, unless otherwise requested by the County. Destination will 
be determined at time of order. 
 
5.  Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its 
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 
 

 

 



 

 

a.  For Vendor:    Doug Hamilton, President  
      100 Avery Street 
      Walla Walla, WA 99362 
      Tel: 509‐529‐4561 
      Email: dhamilton@walterenelson.com 

 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small, Procurement/Contract Coordinator  
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
509‐735‐6555 Ext. 3880 
Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  
 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 
If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 
the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 
pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.   



 

 

 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
  c.  Automobile  Liability:  The  Vendor  shall  maintain,  during  the  life  of  this  Contract, 
Automobile Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or 
if the Vendor has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not  less  than one million dollars  ($1,000,000) per accident  for Bodily  Injury and Property Damage  to 
protect  Vendor  from  claims which may  arise  from  the  performance  of  this  Contract, whether  such 
operations be by the Vendor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor.  
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 
insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 
deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 
excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 
 



 

 

2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope 
of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.  
 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage 
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 
 

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  
 

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for 
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.  
 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are 
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on 
indemnification.  
 

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing 
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements 
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability 
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.   
 

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained under this Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition 
does not permit VENDOR to enter into a pre‐loss agreement to waive subrogation 
without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 
endorsement.  This  requirement  shall  not  apply  to  any  policy  which  includes  a 
condition expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the Vendor enter  into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre‐loss 
basis.  

 
9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly 

conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements. 
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt 
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to 
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor. 

 
  e.  Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:   
 

  All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do 
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 
or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 
requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 
procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  
   

1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 



Liability  and Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected officials, employees and volunteers as an “Additional  Insured” by way of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance maintained  by  the 
COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess 
of the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided
to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5.

3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of
required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract
Representative referenced in Section 5.

4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies
specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A,
Kennewick, WA 99336.

11. The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 

12. This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 

13. The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners,
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 

14. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal,
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 













 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Nov. 8, 2016       
Subject: Contract w/Crown 

Paper & Janitorial 
Supply Company 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  
   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X_ _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2016-690 dated September 13, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners solicited 
bids for the procurement of jail chemicals and janitorial supplies for the Benton County Bureau of 
Corrections. 
 
Per Resolution 2016-813 dated October 18, 2016, the Board of Commissioners deemed Crown Paper & 
Janitorial Supply Company to be the sole bidder for the purchase of jail chemicals and janitorial supplies 
for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections and required them to enter into a purchase agreement as 
further stipulated in the bid documents. 
 

Attached is a purchase agreement between Benton County and Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply 
Company for a two-year agreement that shall commence upon signature of both parties not to exceed 
$175,000 including WSST, for jail chemicals and janitorial supplies for the Benton County Bureau of 
Corrections.  
 
Per Resolution 2016-389, the Board entered into a contract with Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply 
Company for the purchase of jail chemicals and janitorial supplies for a contract up to $25,000 or until 
December 31, 2016, whichever came first.  The attached Agreement shall commence upon signature of 
both parties and shall terminate December 31, 2018.  Resolution 2016-389 shall be rescinded and the 
agreement shall be terminated this day forward.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Purchase Agreement between Benton County and Crown Paper & 
Janitorial Supply Company.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures have been included in the 2017/18 budget process.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
s. Agreement w/Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Co. for Chemicals & Janitorial Supplies



Orig: Sheriff’s Office   L. Small  
CC: Auditor; PA, Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF JAIL 
CHEMICALS AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES TO CROWN PAPER & JANITORIAL SUPPLY 
COMPANY FOR THE BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS; RESCINDING 
RESOLUTION 2016-389 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-690 dated September 13, 2016, the Board of Benton County 

Commissioners solicited bids for the procurement of jail chemicals and janitorial supplies for the 
Benton County Bureau of Corrections; and 

 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-813 dated October 18, 2016, the Board of Commissioners deemed 

Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Company to be the sole bidder for the purchase of jail chemicals 
and janitorial supplies and required them to enter into a purchase agreement, as further stipulated 

in the bid documents; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
awards the attached purchase agreement to Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Company for the 

purchase of jail chemicals and janitorial supplies for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections; 

and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
purchase agreement between Benton County and Crown Paper & Janitorial Supply Company for a 
contract amount not to exceed $175,000.00 including WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached purchase agreement shall commence upon signature of 
both parties and shall continue until December 31, 2018; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the purchase agreement between Benton County and Crown Paper & 
Janitorial Supply Company for the purchase of chemical and janitorial supplies as per Resolution 2016-
389 shall hereby be rescinded and the agreement shall be terminated from this day forth.  

 
 
Dated this ________ day of __________________, 2016. 

 
 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

  
 ___________________________              

 Member 
 

Attest ……………………………………………  ___________________________                
                   Clerk of the Board       Member 

 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 



VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350  (hereinafter "County"), and CROWN PAPER & 
JANITORIAL SUPPLY COMPANY, 100 Avery Street, Walla Walla, WA 99362,  (hereinafter “Vendor). 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   

1. Vendor agrees  to  furnish  to  the County  the products as  listed  in Exhibit A,  for Jail Chemical and
Janitorial Supplies CB 16‐08 in accordance with its bid dated September 23, 2016 and to supply the product 
strictly  in accordance with  the  specifications and  requirements  set  forth  therein. The County anticipates 
purchase of  the  items  listed  in Exhibit A but does not guarantee any specific minimum quantity. Vendor 
agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the term of 
the Agreement. In the event the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a sale price to that 
provided in Exhibit A attached hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale price to the County 
for said  item. Vendor further agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed herein during the 
course of this Agreement it will provide a reasonable substitute of said products to the County at the same 
price.  What constitutes a reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be determined at the 
sole discretion of  the County. The Vendor shall provide all necessary equipment  for  the dispensing of all 
laundry chemicals and shall repair and maintain said equipment at no additional cost to the County.  Vendor 
is required to respond to all service calls for the repairs or maintenance on said equipment within 36 hours 
of initial notification by the County.    

2. The  Vendor's  bid  for  Jail  Chemical  and  Janitorial  Supplies  CB  16‐08,  and  corresponding
documents, all of which are on file in the office of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, shall constitute a 
part of  this Agreement and are by  this  reference  incorporated and made a part of  this Agreement as 
though fully set forth.  Each party expressly covenants and agrees to carry out and fully perform each and 
all of the provisions of these documents upon its or his part to be performed. 

3. County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an
overall Agreement amount not to exceed $175,000, including Washington State Sales Tax.  A purchase order 
is  required  for  each order.    The Vendor will  supply  the quantities of product  requested by  the County 

during the term of this Agreement. The Vendor may submit invoices to the County not more than once per 
month during  the  course of  this Agreement.    Invoices  shall  cover  the products  supplied  to  the County 
during the billing period.    The County shall pay the Vendor for products provided  in the month following 
the actual delivery of products and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 

4. All deliveries are to be made F.O.B. Benton County Jail, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Kennewick, WA
between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on regularly observed state 
or federal holidays, unless otherwise requested by the County. Destination will be determined at time of 
order. 



 

 

5.  Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its 
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 

 

a.  For Vendor:    Doug Hamilton, President  
      100 Avery Street 
      Walla Walla, WA 99362 
      Tel: 509‐529‐4561 
      Email: dhamilton@walterenelson.com 
 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small  
7122 W. Okanogan Place Bldg. B 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
(509) 735‐6555 ext. 3880 
Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us 
 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence upon signature of both parties and shall continue until December 
31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 



 

 

If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 
the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 
pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.  
 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 
 

  c.  Automobile  Liability:  The  Vendor  shall  maintain,  during  the  life  of  this  Contract, 
Automobile Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or 
if the Vendor has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not  less  than one million dollars  ($1,000,000) per accident  for Bodily  Injury and Property Damage  to 
protect  Vendor  from  claims which may  arise  from  the  performance  of  this  Contract, whether  such 
operations be by the Vendor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor.  
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 



insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 
deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 
excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 

2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope
of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents.

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on
indemnification.

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained  under  this  Contract.  When  required  by  an  insurer,  or  if  a  policy 
condition does  not  permit  Vendor  to  enter  into  a  pre‐loss  agreement  to waive 
subrogation without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and 
obtain  such endorsement.   This   requirement   shall   not   apply   to   any   policy  
which   includes   a condition  expressly  prohibiting waiver  of  subrogation  by  the 
insured  or which  voids coverage  should  the  Vendor  enter  into  such  a waiver  of 
subrogation on a pre‐loss basis.

9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly
conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements.
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor.

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 
or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 



requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 
procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  

1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 
Liability  and  Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected  officials,  employees  and  volunteers  as  an  “Additional  Insured”  by  way  of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance  maintained  by  the 
County, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess of 
the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it.

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided
to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5.

3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of
required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract
Representative referenced in Section 5.

4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies
specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A,
Kennewick, WA 99336.

11. The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 

12. This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 

13. The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners,
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 

14. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal,
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 















 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Nov. 8, 2016       
Subject: Contract w/Bob Barker 

Company, Inc. 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson 
   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X_ _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2016-693, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office solicited bids for the procurement of inmate 
supplies for the Bureau of Corrections.  
 
Per Resolution 2016-814, the Board deemed Bob Barker Company, Inc. to be the lowest responsible bidder 
for the purchase of inmate supplies and required them to enter into a purchase agreement as further 
stipulated in the bid documents.  
 
Attached is a purchase agreement between Benton County and Bob Barker Company, Inc. for a two-year 
agreement not to exceed $90,000 for inmate supplies for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections. 
 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached purchase agreement between Benton County and Bob Barker Company, Inc.  

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures have been included in the 2017/18 budget.  
 
 

MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
t. Agreement w/Bob Barker Co for Inmate Supplies



Orig: Sheriff’s Office   L. Small  
CC: Auditor; PA, Bob Barker Company 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
INMATE SUPPLIES TO BOB BARKER COMPANY, INC. FOR THE BENTON COUNTY BUREAU 
OF CORRECTIONS 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-693, the Board of Benton County Commissioners solicited bids for 
the procurement of inmate supplies for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-814, the Board of Commissioners deemed Bob Barker Company, 
Inc. to be the lowest responsible bidder for the purchase of inmate supplies and required them to enter 
into a purchase agreement as further stipulated in the bid documents; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
awards the attached purchase agreement to Bob Barker Company, Inc. for the purchase of Inmate 
Supplies for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
purchase agreement between Benton County and Bob Barker Company, Inc.; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the two year contract amount shall not exceed $90,000 including 
WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached purchase agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 
and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  

 
 
 
 
 
Dated this ________ day of __________________, 2016. 

 
 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

  
 ___________________________              

 Member 
 

Attest ……………………………………………  ___________________________                
                   Clerk of the Board       Member 

 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 



VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal  offices  at  620  Market  Street,  Prosser,  WA  99350  (hereinafter  "County"),  and  BOB  BARKER 
COMPANY, INC., a North Carolina Corporation, with its principal offices at 134 N. Main Street, Fuquay Varina, 
NC 27526 (hereinafter "Vendor"). 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   

1. Vendor agrees to furnish to the County the products as listed in Exhibit A, for Inmate Supplies CB 16‐
09 in accordance with its bid dated October 4, 2016 and to supply the product strictly in accordance with the 
specifications and requirements set forth therein.   The County anticipates purchase of the  items  listed  in 
Exhibit A, but does not guarantee any specific minimum quantity. Vendor agrees  to provide any and all 
purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the term of the Agreement. In the event 
the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a sale price to that provided in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale price to the County for said item. Vendor further 
agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed herein during the course of this Agreement it will 
provide  a  reasonable  substitute of  said products  to  the County  at  the  same price.   What  constitutes  a 
reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be determined at the sole discretion of the County. 

2. The Vendor's bid for Inmate Supplies CB 16‐09, and corresponding documents, all of which are
on file in the office of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, shall constitute a part of this Agreement and are 
by this reference incorporated and made a part of this Agreement as though fully set forth.  Each party 
expressly covenants and agrees  to carry out and  fully perform each and all of  the provisions of  these 
documents upon its or his part to be performed. 

3. County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an
overall Agreement amount not to exceed $90,000.00, including WSST.  A purchase order is required for each 
order.    The Vendor will supply the quantities of product requested by the County during the term of this 
Agreement. The Vendor may  submit  invoices  to  the County not more  than once per month during  the 
course  of  this  Agreement.    Invoices  shall  cover  the  products  supplied  to  the  County  during  the  billing 
period.   The County shall pay the Vendor for products provided in the month following the actual delivery 
of products and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 

4. All  deliveries  are  to  be made  F.O.B.  Benton  County  Jail,  7122 W.  Okanogan  Place,  Bldg.  B,
Kennewick, WA between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on regularly 
observed  state  or  federal  holidays,  unless  otherwise  requested  by  the  County.  Destination  will  be 
determined at time of order. 

5. Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 



 

 

a.  For Vendor:    Joe Hendrickson  
      134 N. Main Street 
      Fuquay Varina, NC 27526 
      800‐322‐7537 
      joehendrickson@bobbarker.com 

 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
509‐735‐6555 Ext. 3880 
Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  
 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
 
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 
If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 
the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 



 

 

pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.  
 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
  c.  Automobile Liability: The Vendor shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, Automobile 
Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or if the Vendor 
has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of not less than one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect Vendor from claims 
which may arise from the performance of this Contract, whether such operations be by the Vendor or by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor. 
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 
insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 
deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 



 

 

excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 
 

2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope 
of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.  
 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage 
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 
 

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  
 

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for 
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.  
 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are 
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on 
indemnification.  
 

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing 
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements 
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability 
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.   
 

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained under this Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition 
does not permit VENDOR to enter into a pre‐loss agreement to waive subrogation 
without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 
endorsement.  This  requirement  shall  not  apply  to  any  policy  which  includes  a 
condition expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the Vendor enter  into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre‐loss 
basis.  

 
9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly 

conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements. 
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt 
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to 
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor. 

 
  d.  Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:   
 

  All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do 
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 
or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 
requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 
procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  



 

 

   
1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 

Liability  and Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected officials, employees and volunteers as an “Additional  Insured” by way of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance maintained  by  the 
COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess 
of the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided 

to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5. 
 
3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of 

required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract 
Representative referenced in Section 5.  

 
4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies 

specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the 
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, 
Kennewick, WA 99336.  

   
11.   The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this 
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 
 
12.   This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State 
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 
 
13.  The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners, 
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 
 
14.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal, 
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 
 
15.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of its terms and conditions.  Any 
oral  or  written  representations  or  understandings  not  incorporated  in  this  Agreement  are  specifically 
excluded. 

















AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Nov. 8, 2016       
Subject: Contract w/Galls LLC 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X_ _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion _____  
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Per Resolution 2016-694 dated September 13, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners solicited 
bids for the procurement of employee uniforms – class A and other related items for the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office. 

Per Resolution 2016-816 dated October 18, 2016, the Board of Commissioners deemed Galls, LLC to 
be the sole bidder for the purchase of employee uniforms – class A and other related items and required 
them to enter into a purchase agreement as further stipulated in the bid documents. 

Attached is a purchase agreement between Benton County and Galls, LLC, also dba/Blumenthal 
Uniforms and Equipment Co., Inc. for a two-year agreement not to exceed $95,000 including WSST, for 
employee uniforms – class A and other related items for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office. 

APPROVED AS TO FORM  

Ryan Lukson, DPA  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached Resolution and Purchase Agreement between Benton County and Galls, LLC.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Expenditures have been included in the 2017/18 budget process.  

MOTION 

Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
u. Agreement w/Galls, LLC for Employee Uniforms – Class A



RESOLUTION 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PROCUREMENT 
OF EMPLOYEE UNIFORMS – CLASS A AND OTHER RELATED ITEMS TO GALLS, LLC 
FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 

WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-694, the Board of Benton County Commissioners solicited bids for 
the procurement of employee uniforms – class A and other related items for the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office; and 

WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-816, the Board of Commissioners deemed Galls, LLC, Lexington, 
KY to be the sole bidder for the purchase of employee uniforms – class A and other related items 
and required them to enter into a purchase agreement as further stipulated in the bid documents; NOW, 
THEREFORE 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington hereby awards the attached purchase agreement to Galls, LLC, also dba 
Blumenthal Uniforms and Equipment Co., Inc. for the purchase of  employee uniforms – Class A 
and other related items for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
purchase agreement between Benton County and Galls, LLC for a contract amount not to exceed 
$95,000 including WSST; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached purchase agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 
and shall continue until December 31, 2018. 

Dated this day of , 2016. 

Chairman of the Board 

Member 

Attest …………………………………………… 
Clerk of the Board Member 

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 

Orig: Sheriff’s Office L. Small 
CC: Auditor; PA, Galls, LLC 



VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "County"), and GALLS, LLC, with  its 
principal offices at 1340 Russell Cave Road, Lexington, KY 40505 (hereinafter "Vendor"). 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   

1. Vendor agrees to furnish to the County the products as listed in Exhibit A, for Employee Uniforms –
Class A and Other Related Items CB 16‐11 in accordance with its bid dated October 3, 2016 to supply the 
product  strictly  in  accordance with  the  specifications  and  requirements  set  forth  therein.    The  County 
anticipates purchase of the items listed in Exhibit A but does not guarantee any specific minimum quantity. 
Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the 
term of the Agreement. In the event the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a sale price 
to that provided in Exhibit A attached hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale price to the 
County for said item. Vendor further agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed herein during 
the course of this Agreement  it will provide a reasonable substitute of said products to the County at the 
same price.  What constitutes a reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be determined at 
the sole discretion of the County. 

2. The Vendor's bid for Employee Uniforms – Class A and Other Related Items Supplies CB 16‐11, and
corresponding documents, all of which are on file in the office of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, shall 
constitute  a  part of  this Agreement  and  are  by  this  reference  incorporated  and made  a  part of  this 
Agreement as though fully set forth.   Each party expressly covenants and agrees to carry out and fully 
perform each and all of the provisions of these documents upon its or his part to be performed. 

3. County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an
overall Agreement amount not to exceed $95,000.00 including Washington State Sales Tax.  A purchase order 
is  required  for  each order.    The Vendor will  supply  the quantities of product  requested by  the County 
during the term of this Agreement. The Vendor may submit invoices to the County not more than once per 
month  during  the  course of  this Agreement.    Invoices  shall  cover  the products  supplied  to  the County 
during the billing period.    The County shall pay the Vendor for products provided  in the month following 
the actual delivery of products and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 

4. All  deliveries  are  to  be made  F.O.B.  Benton  County  Jail,  7122 W.  Okanogan  Place,  Bldg.  B,
Kennewick, WA between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on regularly 
observed  state  or  federal  holidays,  unless  otherwise  requested  by  the  County.  Destination  will  be 
determined at time of order. 

5. Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 



 

 

a.  For Vendor:    Kiley Lyons 
        1306 N. Howard 
        Spokane, WA 99201 
        800‐777‐3847  
        Lyons‐Kiley@galls.com 
       
 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small, Procurement/Contract Coordinator 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
509‐735‐6555 Ext. 3880 
Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  
 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
 
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 
If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 
the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 



 

 

pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.  
 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
  c.  Automobile  Liability:  The  Vendor  shall  maintain,  during  the  life  of  this  Contract, 
Automobile Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or 
if the Vendor has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not  less  than one million dollars  ($1,000,000) per accident  for Bodily  Injury and Property Damage  to 
protect  Vendor  from  claims which may  arise  from  the  performance  of  this  Contract, whether  such 
operations be by the Vendor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor.  
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 
insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 
deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 



excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 

2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope
of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents.

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on
indemnification.

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained  under  this  Contract.  When  required  by  an  insurer,  or  if  a  policy 
condition does  not  permit  Vendor  to  enter  into  a  pre‐loss  agreement  to waive 
subrogation without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and 
obtain  such endorsement.   This   requirement   shall   not   apply   to   any   policy  
which   includes   a condition  expressly  prohibiting waiver  of  subrogation  by  the 
insured  or which  voids coverage  should  the  Vendor  enter  into  such  a waiver  of 
subrogation on a pre‐loss basis.

9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly
conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements.
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor.

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 
or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 
requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 
procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  



1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 
Liability  and  Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected  officials,  employees  and  volunteers  as  an  “Additional  Insured”  by  way  of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance  maintained  by  the 
County, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess of 
the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it.

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided
to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5.

3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of
required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract
Representative referenced in Section 5.

4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies
specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A,
Kennewick, WA 99336.

11. The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 

12. This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 

13. The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners,
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 

14. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal,
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 

15. The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of its terms and conditions.  Any
oral  or  written  representations  or  understandings  not  incorporated  in  this  Agreement  are  specifically 
excluded. 















 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Nov. 8, 2016       
Subject: Contract w/911 Supply, 

Inc.  
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  
   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X_ _ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2016-691 dated September 13, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners solicited 
bids for the procurement of employee BDU uniforms and other related items for the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office. 
 
Per Resolution 2016-815 dated October 18, 2016, the Board of Commissioners deemed 911 Supply, Inc. 
to be the lowest responsible bidder for the purchase of employee BDU uniforms and other related items 
and required them to enter into a purchase agreement as further stipulated in the bid documents. 
 

Attached is a purchase agreement between Benton County and 911 Supply, Inc. for a two-year agreement 
not to exceed $150,000 including WSST, for employee BDU uniforms and other related items for the 
Benton County Sheriff’s Office. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Purchase Agreement between Benton County and 911 Supply, Inc.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures have been included in the 2017/18 budget process.  
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
v. Contract w/911 Supply for Uniforms



Orig: Sheriff’s Office   L. Small  
CC: Auditor; PA, 911 Supply, Inc.  

 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AWARDING THE PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR THE PURCHASE OF 
EMPLOYEE BDU UNIFORMS AND OTHER RELATED EQUIPMENT FOR THE BENTON COUNTY 
SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-691 dated September 13, 2016, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners solicited bids for the procurement of employee BDU uniforms and other related 
equipment for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections and Sheriff’s Patrol; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-815 dated October 18, 2016, the Board of Commissioners deemed 
911 Supply, Inc. to be the lowest responsible bidder for the purchase of employee BDU uniforms and 
other related equipment and required them to enter into a purchase agreement, as further stipulated 
in the bid documents; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
awards the attached purchase agreement to 911 Supply, Inc. for the purchase of employee BDU 
uniforms and other related equipment for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman to sign the attached 
purchase agreement between Benton County and 911 Supply, Inc. for a contract amount not to exceed 
$150,000.00 including WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached purchase agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 
and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  

 
 
 
 
 
Dated this ________ day of __________________, 2016. 

 
 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

  
 ___________________________              

 Member 
 

Attest ……………………………………………  ___________________________                
                   Clerk of the Board       Member 

 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 



VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "County"), and 911 SUPPLY, LLC, an 
Oregon Corporation, with its principal offices at 4484 River Road, Keizer, OR 97303 (hereinafter "Vendor"). 

In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   

1. Vendor agrees to furnish to the County the products as listed in Exhibit A, for Employee Uniforms –
BDU/Blauer and Other Related Items CB 16‐10 in accordance with its bid dated October 4, 2016 and to supply 
the product strictly  in accordance with the specifications and requirements set forth therein.   The County 
anticipates purchase of the items listed in Exhibit A but does not guarantee any specific minimum quantity. 
Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the 
term of the Agreement. In the event the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a sale price 
to that provided in Exhibit A attached hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale price to the 
County for said item. Vendor further agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed herein during 
the course of this Agreement  it will provide a reasonable substitute of said products to the County at the 
same price.  What constitutes a reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be determined at 
the sole discretion of the County. 

2. The Vendor's bid  for Employee Uniforms – BDU/Blauer and Other Related  Items CB 16‐10, and
corresponding documents, all of which are on file in the office of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, shall 
constitute  a  part of  this Agreement  and  are  by  this  reference  incorporated  and made  a  part of  this 
Agreement as though fully set forth.   Each party expressly covenants and agrees to carry out and fully 
perform each and all of the provisions of these documents upon its or his part to be performed. 

3. County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an
overall Agreement amount not to exceed $150,000.00,  including Washington State Sales Tax.   A purchase 
order is required for each order.  The Vendor will supply the quantities of product requested by the County 
during the term of this Agreement. The Vendor may submit invoices to the County not more than once per 
month during the course of this Agreement.  Invoices shall cover the products supplied to the County during 
the billing period.  The County shall pay the Vendor for products provided in the month following the actual 
delivery of products and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 

4. All  deliveries  are  to  be made  F.O.B.  Benton  County  Jail,  7122 W.  Okanogan  Place,  Bldg.  B,
Kennewick, WA between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on regularly 
observed  state  or  federal  holidays,  unless  otherwise  requested  by  the  County.  Destination  will  be 
determined at time of order. 

5. Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 



 

 

 
a.  For Vendor:    Pete Copp, Store Manager 
      4484 River Road 
      Keizer, OR 97303 
      Tel: 877‐393‐4911 
      Email: pete@911supply.com 

 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small, Procurement / Contract Coordinator 
7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
Kennewick, WA 99336 
509‐735‐6555 Ext. 3880 
Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  
 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
 
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 
If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 



 

 

the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 
pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.  
 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
  c.  Automobile  Liability:  The  Vendor  shall  maintain,  during  the  life  of  this  Contract, 
Automobile Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or 
if the Vendor has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not  less  than one million dollars  ($1,000,000) per accident  for Bodily  Injury and Property Damage  to 
protect  Vendor  from  claims which may  arise  from  the  performance  of  this  Contract, whether  such 
operations be by the Vendor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor.  
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 
insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 



deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 
excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 

2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope
of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents.

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on
indemnification.

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained  under  this  Contract.  When  required  by  an  insurer,  or  if  a  policy 
condition does  not  permit  Vendor  to  enter  into  a  pre‐loss  agreement  to waive 
subrogation without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and 
obtain  such endorsement.   This   requirement   shall   not   apply   to   any   policy  
which   includes   a condition  expressly  prohibiting waiver  of  subrogation  by  the 
insured  or which  voids coverage  should  the  Vendor  enter  into  such  a waiver  of 
subrogation on a pre‐loss basis.

9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly
conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements.
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor.

e. Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:

All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 
or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 
requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 



procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  

1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 
Liability  and  Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected  officials,  employees  and  volunteers  as  an  “Additional  Insured”  by  way  of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance  maintained  by  the 
County, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess of 
the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it.

2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided
to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5.

3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of
required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract
Representative referenced in Section 5.

4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies
specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A,
Kennewick, WA 99336.

11. The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 

12. This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 

13. The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners,
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 

14. If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal,
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 















 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: November 8, 2016 

Subject: Motion to Approve 2017 

Legislative Agenda 

Prepared by: Shyanne Faulconer 

Reviewed by: Adam Fyall 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract         

Pass Resolution             

Pass Ordinance              

Pass Motion  X  

None    

 
 

 

Consent Agenda      

Public Hearing             

Scheduled Business         X 

1st Discussion             

Other              

 

SUMMARY 

Benton County’s 2017 Legislative Agenda outlines and articulates the primary policies, projects, and programs that 

the County will emphasize during the upcoming legislative session and throughout the year. We work closely with 

our community partners such as cities, ports, and neighboring counties to develop goals of mutual interest that will 

improve and sustain the economic vitality and quality of life that is enjoyed in the Mid-Columbia region. This agenda 

represents our top legislative priorities for the 2017 legislative session. 

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Benton County has produced legislative agendas in the past, with help from Commissioner Delvin and Adam Fyall, 

as well as recommendations received from elected officials and department managers. Once the election has 

commenced and legislative positions filled, the County will reach out to those legislators to set up meetings to discuss 

our agenda, likely to occur December 19 – 22. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact for this project. 

 

MOTION 

To approve the 2017 County of Benton Legislative Priorities as outlined in the document presented. 

WEH
Text Box
Approval of 2017 Legislative Agenda ~ S Faulconer



LEGISLATIVE
PRIORITIES

2017

COUNTY BENTONof



LEGISLATIVE
2017 Washington State

REFORMATION OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS ACT
Benton County implements the Public Records Act (PRA) every day to ensure that transparency in

decisionmaking and public access to government records is maintained. However, the PRA is regularly

abused by individuals seeking to gain monetary profit or to harass public employees. These requests

require disproportionate amounts of resources and staff time to resolve, especially in electronic format with

no fee. As such, these requests significantly reduce the ability of the County to respond both efficiently and

effectively to legitimate requests. Benton County supports the protection of the Public Records Act by

enacting common sense reforms and implementing a mandatory hourly fee for providing electronic records.

INDEXING PROPERTY TAX REVENUE GROWTH  
 Benton County receives the majority of its revenue from property taxes, which are currently capped at a

level that has not kept up with our growing costs and rapidly growing population. Because public safety

and criminal justice costs comprise the majority of our general fund budget, property taxes are inextricably

tied to justice, health, and safety of our citizens. Benton County aims to protect citizens’ access to justice,

health, and safety services by capping property tax revenue growth to inflation and population growth so

that we aren’t forced to make cuts to our core governmental services.

EVEN YEAR ELECTION COSTS 
Included in the Washington State Association of Counties Fiscal Sustainability Initiative is funding of even

year elections by Washington State. Benton County has been covering the increased cost of evenyear

Washington State elections. Currently, the State is only paying their share of election costs in oddyear

elections (as required by RCW 29A.04.420), opposite of when there have been State races on the ballot.

Benton County calls on the Legislature to fully cover costs in both odd and evenyear State elections.

PROVIDE ADEQUATE FUNDING FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE  
All Washington State counties have the duty, assigned by Legislature, to provide adequate defense for

indigent citizens. However, the State funds less than five percent (5%) of the cost that counties currently

spend for such services. Counties currently spend approximately $135 million annually on indigent defense

services, with the State providing $5 million to all cities and counties. To continue having public access to

this constitutional right, we support the Legislature fully funding indigent defense services.

The federal government does not pay property taxes, and many local governments receive payments in

lieu of taxes (PILT) from the federal government to support services provided by local governments where

properties that would otherwise generate property tax revenues have been withdrawn by the federal

government. Benton County wants the Legislature to be aware that it has been having difficulties collecting

the PILT payments that the US Department of Energy is obligated to pay to the County, and seeks a

statement from the Legislature on the importance of PILT to local communities.

STATEMENT ON THE IMPORTANCE OF PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES



PRIORITIES
Legislative Session

CONTINUED SUPPORT FOR SALMON RECOVERY FUNDING BOARD 
Since 1999, the Salmon Recovery Funding (“SRF”) Board has funded over 100 projects in the Yakima

Basin through their grant program.  Project and operations funding support from the Salmon Recovery

Funding (“SRF”) Board has been critical to the success of restoring native salmon populations, particularly

in the Yakima Basin, and Benton County urges continued support of this Board from the Legislature.

SUPPORT FOR THE YAKIMA BASIN INTEGRATED PLAN
The Yakima Basin Integrated Plan represents an unprecedented example of cooperation among federal,

state, local, and tribal governments, along with business, agricultural, and environmental interests in

addressing water quality, quantity, and habitat needs.  Benton County seeks the State’s sustained backing

of the Department of Ecology in its leadership role in this program and sponsored projects.

SUPPORT FUNDING OF LIGO STEM EXPLORATION CENTER
LIGO, the Laser Interferometer GravitationalWave Observatory, requests the State of Washington to fund

the construction a science education center at the site of LIGO’s gravitational wave detector complex near

the TriCities in Benton County.The LIGO STEM Exploration Center will leverage large federal investment in

LIGO by creating STEM engagement opportunities for K12 groups and the general public.

FLOODPLAINS BY DESIGN 
The Department of Ecology’s Floodplain by Design program has greatly increased Benton County’s ability

to develop and implement large scale winwin floodplain projects that restore habitat for atrisk fish while

also reducing flood risk to developed areas. The County supports this Floodplain by Design program.

SUPPORT OF MANHATTAN NATIONAL PARK IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
The Manhattan Project National Historical Park  was created in November 2015 and is currently seeking

Legislative support for multiple projects. This includes construction of a visitor and tour center in North

Richland, creation of a park entrance off of SR 240/24 at Hanford Gate 127 to showcase the National Park

landscape, and support for muchneeded improvements to the main entrance and main visitor access

roadway, including additional access to parking and space for concessionaires.

RESTORATION OF THE PUBLIC WORKS ASSISTANCE ACCOUNT
The Public Works Assistance Account (PWAA), more commonly known as the Public Works Trust Fund,

was established in 1985 to finance local government infrastructure loans. PWAA funds have been reduced

or eliminated in past sessions, thus eliminating capacity to provide sound infrastructure to communities. The

Legislature must protect the PWAA, and diverting funds is unacceptable for the citizens of Benton County.



COUNTY BENTONof
Benton County’s Legislative Priorities outlines and articulates the primary policies, projects,

and programs that the County will emphasize during the upcoming legislative session and

throughout the year. We work closely with our community partners such as cities, ports, and

neighboring counties to develop goals of mutual interest that will improve and sustain the

economic vitality and quality of life that is enjoyed in the MidColumbia region. This agenda

represents our top legislative priorities for the 2017 legislative session.

620 MARKET STREET    PROSSER, WA 99350
509.786.5600    WWW.CO.BENTON.WA.US

FACEBOOK.COM/BENTONCOUNTYWA

TWITTER.COM/BENTONCO_WA



Information Technology 2016 

Highlights:  

 Increasing our wireless presence.  Wireless clients have increase by 65%  

o Expanding wireless access to Fairgrounds and Animal Control 

 Assist the Auditors Office with the implementation of Eden’s Employee Services portal, 

paperless vouchers and employee timekeeping. 

 Investigating and exploring new technology 

o Windows 10 

o Surface Books 

o O365 

 Assist Superior Court Clerk with expansion of Jury Management services 

o Unlimited Juror call‐ins 

o Text notifications 

 Text archiving of cell phone message – move to AT & T, move back to Verizon 

 Firewall replacement‐Enhancing our network security 

 Set in place tools enabling Remote workforce technology 

 Planning County Website refresh (BDW) 

 On Call – Afterhours assignments –All Technical Staff included in the rotation 

 Increase in malicious traffic from off shore‐new tools allow us to stop and mitigate these 

threats.   

 

WEH
Text Box
Information Technology Update ~ T Holmes



Benton County Information Technology Service Manager Incident Statistics

Active
72

Closed
1985

Resolved
90

191

420

480

1

411

130
154

31
53

24

218

64

140

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

Total Incidents

Total Incidents by AnalystActive Incidents by Analyst

1
40

181

5 30
92

21

309

120 108

505

715

20

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

Total Incidents by Classification

4 4

11

7

27

5

1

7

13

0

5

10

15

20

25

30



6

102

112

78

48

255

48

21

26

117

143

27

7

117

122

129

35

33

78

23

6

22

9

2

32

148

1

70

24

2

89

189

3

WSU Co‐op Extension

Treasurer

Superior Court Clerk

Superior Court

Sheriff Patrol

Sheriff Custody

Sheriff Clerk & Records

Sheriff Civil

Sheriff Administration

Public Works

Prosecuting Attorney

Planning

Pest Control

Personnel

Juvenile Justice

Information Technology ‐ Service Account

Information Technology

Indigent Defense

Human Services

Geographic Information Systems

Fairgrounds

Facilities

Elections

Economic Development

District Court Probation

District Court

Coroner

Commissioners

Building

Board of Equalization

Auditor

Assessor

Animal Control

0 50 100 150 200 250 300

Total Incidents by Department



1

7

2

8

9

2

1

3

2

3

5

5

7

6

1

3

1

1

1

3

1

0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Treasurer

Superior Court Clerk

Superior Court

Sheriff Patrol

Sheriff Custody

Sheriff Civil

Sheriff Administration

Public Works

Prosecuting Attorney

Personnel

Juvenile Justice

Information Technology ‐ Service Account

Information Technology

Human Services

Fairgrounds

Facilities

District Court

Commissioners

Board of Equalization

Auditor

Assessor

Active Incidents by Department



 Design 3 


	CA - Commissioners e.pdf
	Resolution
	Form




